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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DCA4)
Annual Flnanclal Stataments for the vear ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The ascounting offlcer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 86 of 2003}, to malntaln adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and Integrity of the annual financlal statements and ralated flnanclal
Information Included in this report, It 18 the respensibllity of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financlal statements
falrly present the state of affairs of the munlclpality as at the end of the financlal year and the results of its aperations and cash
flows for the perlad then ended. The external audiiors are engaged to exprass an Independent opinfon on the annual financial
statements and was given unresiricied access to all financlal records and related data,

The annual flnancial statemenls have been prepared In accordance with Standards of Genarally Recognlsed Accounting
Practloe (BRAP) Including any interpratations, guldslines and directives lssued by the Accounting Standards Board,

The annual financial statements are based upon approprlate accounting policles consistently applied and supported by
reagzonable and prudent Judgements and estimates, :

The aceounting officer acknowiadges that he s ulimately responslbla for the system of internal financlal confrol established by
the municipality and place considarable importance on malntaining a strong control envirorment. To anable the accolrting
officer to meet these responsiblities, the accounting cofficer sets standards for Internal control almad at reducing the risic of
error or deficlt In @ cost efiective manner. The standards Include the proper delegation of responsibllities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employess are required to malntain the highest ethical
standards | ensuring the municipality'’s business is conducted In a manner that in all reasonable clrcumstances ls above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality Is on Identifying, agsessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the muntcipallty. While operating risk cannot be fully aliminated, the munlcipality endeavours fo minimlse it
by ensuring that appropriate Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetarmined procedures and constraints,

The accounting officer Is of the opinion, based on the Information and explanations given by managament, that the systaim of
Internal contrel provides ressonable assurance that the financial records may be relled on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of Imernal financlal control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assUrance against maierial misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2024 and, in the light of this
review and the current financlal position, he is satisfied that the municipallty has or has acoess to adsquate resources to
cohtihue in operational existence for the foreseahle future.

The municlpality is depsndent an the government for continued funding of cperations. The annual financial slatements are
prepared on the basls that the munlcipallty Is a golng concern and that the municipaiity has nelther the Intention nor the need to
liquictate or curtall maferially the scale of the municipallty.

The external auditors are responsible for Independently reviewing and reporting on the municlpalify's annual financial
statements.

The annual financlal statements set out dh'page 6 fo 85, which have been prepared on the golng concem basls, ware
appraved by the Accounting Officer on.31 August 2023 and were slgned by:

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

07 DEC 2073

Accounting Officer
Zamlile H. Sikhundia




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
(Registration number DGC44)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Officer's Report

The aceounting offlcer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2023,

1. Revlew of activities

Maln business and operations

Nat surplus of the municipality was R 579 352 340 (2022: surplus R 724 460 088)

2,  Guing concern

The annual financlal statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policles applicable to a golng concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future oparatlons and thet the reallsation of assets and setflement of
llabilitles, contingent obligations and commitments will ocour In the ordinary course of business.

3.  Subsequent ovents

The accounting officer Is not aware of any matter or circumstance arfsing sinee the end of the financlal year,

4.  Corporate governance

General

Management is commlited to business Integrity, transparency and professionalism In all Its activities. As part of this
;f::}?rig?ant. management supports the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best
5.  Interest in controlled entlfies

Detalls of the municlpality’s mvestmant in conirolled entifles are sef aut in note 11,

The annual financlal statements set out on pages 8 to 85, which have been prepared on the golng concem basis, were
approved by the Accounting Ofticer on 31 August 2023 and wers signed by:

Accounting Offlcer
Zamile H. Slkhundla

AUDITOR (‘x.f.'NERI-;\L
SOUTH AFRICA

A7 DEC 2023
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
(Regisiration number DG44)
Annual Flnanclal Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

Flgures in Rand Nota(s) 2023 2022
Restated"

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories 4 14 827776 19 665 368

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 5 632 702 9 623 050
" Racsivables from exchange transactions 6 62310797 50 755 164

Cash and cash equivalents 7 1110225379 968972216

VAT recelvable 8 26081 627 31008 356

1212 958 281

1078 022 152

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment ¢ 5431380438 5056174 775
Intangible assets 10 7 649 020 762 912
Invesiments in confrolled entitles 1 100 100
Herltage asssts 12 131 100 131 100
Investments 14 10838087 10 134 587
Other non currant recelvables 7879073 7 704 983
5457 877 818 5074 008 437
Non-Current Assets 5457 877 818 5074 908 437
Current Assets 1212 858 281 1078 022 152
Total Assets 6 670 836 099 6 152 D30 689
Liablilties T
Current Liabllitles e .
Operating lease liability AUQI TOR GiENERA LT 15 226 024 223 528
Payables from exchange transactions SOl T ) 16 168 0B1 913 239 363 274
- Employse benefit obligation ‘ H Al 5 JCA 17 1480 000 2 002 000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 0 7 DEC 202 18 14 106 643 1
Provisions 3 19 32 960 191 26 513 487
Payables from non exchange transactions 20 2 094 880 3 Q06 207
208 919 621 271 098 498
Non-Current Lighilities S
Employee benefit obiigation 17 10855 000 10 080 QOO0
Non-Current Liabilities 10 955 000 10 080 000
Current Liabilities 208 919621 271008 488
Total Liabilitles 219 874 621 281 178 498
Assels 6 G70 836 099 6 152 930 589
Liabilities (219 874 621) (281 178 498}
Net Assels G 450 961 478 5 871 752 01
Accumulated surplus 6 450 961 480 5 871 752 081
Total Net Assets G 450 961 480 5 871 752 091

*Bee Note 48 8 42




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

(Reglstration number DC44)

Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2028

Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023

Elgures in Rand Nota(s) 2023 2022
Restated®
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charyes 22 26208 157 26 422 862
Rental of facillies and equlpment 23 14 971 17681
Agancy seivices 24 221 196 263 388
Other Income 25 B8 985 261 4 274 783
Agctuarlal galns 1373754 1 657 983
Interest Income 28 B3345081 43411288
Tofal revenue from exchange transactions 119 239 300 76 032 075
. Revenue from nan-exchange transactions
Transfer ravenue
Government grants & subsidies 28 1278297 932 1352603 814
119239300 76032 075
1278 297 932 1 362 693 814
Total revenue 21 1397537 232 1428 725 889
Expenditure
Employee related costs 2¢ (289287 928) (271 593 413)
Remuneration of counciliors 30 {11 306 662) (10 499 131)
Legal Costs _ AUDITOR GENERAL 3; (7271078) (7 268 253)
Eﬁzl;le:;a;fsrl s.':md amortisation 18] UT H A FRIC A 23 {98 992 541_) (103(:3: gig;
Leass rentals oh aperating lease R - . ) {1616 800} (1502 041)
Debt Impairment 07 DEC 2023 34 (13404022 (6 48Y G68)
Bulk purchases R ' o 36 {13312 408) (10300 279)
Gontracted services 37 (189 595 835) (150 175 B98)
Transfers and Subsidies 27 {40 978 829) (18 010818)
General Expenses 35 (151310 958) {123 976 272)

Total expenditure

(817 074 760) (703 623 B74)

Total revenua

Total expenditure
Cperating surplus/deficit
Surplus before taxation
Taxation

Surplus for the year from continuing operations

Loss on disposal of agsets

1397 537 232 1428 725 889
(817 074 759) (703 623 874}

68462473 725102015

580 462 473 725 102 015
{(1110133) (641047

Surplus for the year

579 352 340 724 460 063

¥ See Note 48 & 42




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Reglstration number DC44)
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Period Ended 30 June 2023

Accumulated Total net

Figures in Rand surplus / deficit  assets
Balance at 01 July 2021 " 5157 030 972 5157 050 972
Changas In net assets ’

Prior perlod adjustments (9747 249) (9747 249)
Nst Income (Josses) recognised directly in net assets (9747 949) (D 747 949)
Surplus for the year 724 460 063 724 460 068
Total recognlised Income and expenses for the year 714712119 714712 118
Total changes 714712119 714 712 11¢
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2022 5871752 001 5871 752 091
Changes In nat aasets

Prior pariod adjusiments (142 951} (142 951)
Net Income (losses) recognised directly In net assets .- . - L (142 951} (142 951)
Surplus for the year T o o 579 352 340 570 352 340
Total recognised Incoms and expenses for the year * - e 579 209 389 579 209 389
Total shanges - 579 209 388 &7 200 388
Balance at 30 June 2023 6 450 961 430 6 450 9671 480
Nole(s) '

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

07 DEC 2023

*Sea Note 48 & 42




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Registration humber DC44) - * -
Annual Flhanclal Statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2023

Cash Flow Statement

Figures In Rand *

Note{s) 2023 2022
Restated®

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Service charges

Govetnment Grants and Subsidies
Interest Income

Other recelpls

13122790 23035614
1282 404 575 1263 960 900
68035817 32054 204
9221 427 4 649 503

1 383 684 609 1 325 400 221

Payments
Employea costs

AUDITOR C.ENERAL |

Counclllors remuneration SOUTH AFRICA I
Suppllers ' :
Finance costs 07 DEC 2023 !

Grants and subsedies

(283 011 195) (269 834 183)
(11306 562) (10 499 130)
{422 953 518) (206 518 154)
- (406 049)

(40 976 820) (18 010 818)

(768 247 904) (505 368 334)

Total racelpts
Totel payments
Net cash flows from oparating actlvities

1 383 684 609 1 325 400 221
(758 247 904) (505 368 334)
38 625436705 820031 887

Cash flows from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and-equipmant
Purchase of other intangible assets

Staff loan repayments

Incroase In long tetrn receivahles

8 (475 013 438) {621 199 218)
9 580 688 994
10 (7 181 688) -
12 11001 12 Q00
12 - (7704 963)

Nei cash flows from investing activities

(482 183 543) (628 203 188)

Gash flows from financing activities

Net Increasel(decrease) in cagh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beglnning of the year

143 252 162 191 828 699
066 972216 775143 517

Cash and cash equivalants at the end of the year

7 1110225378 966 972 216

The accaunting pofictes an pages 17 to 47 and the notas on pages 48 {o 86 form an integral part of the annual fnanclal

statemants.

* Soe Note 48 & 42




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Reglstratlon numbar DC44)
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual
Budget on Accrual Bagls

k' RGENERAL | —
SO T Abrseea

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts’ Diffeferice ™ Reference
budget on comparabl t flnal
baaﬂ?k_] ﬁEttfumﬁ zhd
Flgures in Rand ‘ actual
Statement of Flinancial Performance J
Revenue
Revenue from axchange
fransactlons
Service charges 39 146 009 3506215 42651224 25208157 (17 353 067) A
Rental of facilitles and eguipment - 103 389 103 389 14 971 (88 418) B
Agency services 187 202 - 187 292 221196 33904 C
Other income - (Reserves) 100 000 000 10000000 110 000 000 - (110000 000 D
Other Income 461 088 1490 296 1982 084 B 985 2681 7033177
Interest recelvad on investments 30178832 35000000 65178832  p3345961 18167129 E
Total revenue from exchange 1699873222 50000599 220072821 117 865546 (102 207 275)
transactlons .
Revenue from non-exchangs
transactions
Transfer ravenus
Government grants & subsidies 1269407000  £6703 6168 1318110616 1273207 032 (37 812 684) F
"Total revenue from exchange 169973222 50099509 220072821 117 8655646 (102 207 275)
{ransactions’
"Total revenue from nof- 1269407000 56703616 1318110616 1278207 932 (37 812 684)
exchange transactlons’
Total revenue 1429 380 222 106 803 215 1 536 183 437 1396 163 478 (140 019 959)
Expendifure .
Personnel (304 627 072) (2494 762) (3071211 834) (289 287 928) 17 B33 906 G
Remuneration of councillors (13181363) (1148580) (14320943) (11306562) 3023381 H
Legal Costs (3100000} (4184 190)  (7284190) (7 271 078) 13112 I
Depreciation and amortisation (100 000 000} (10 000 000) (110000 000) (93 pg2 541) 11007 459 J
Lease rentals on operating lease (2 300 000) - {2300000) (1618 800) 683 200 K
Debt Impairment (24538 848) 2797000 (21741848) (13404022) B 337826 L
Bulk purchases (10000 000)  (3313500) (13213 500) (13 312 408) 1092 M
Contracted Services , (196 343 574) 4840730 (191502 844) (180696 835) 1907000 N
Transfers and Subsidies (31150 000) (16 316778y (4T465778) (40976620) 6489149 0
General Expenses (146 711 881) (23538 231) (170250 112) (151310 956) 18939 156 P
Total expanditure (831 052 738) (53 357 311) (865 310 040) (817 074758) 88 235200
1420380222 106803 215 1636 183 437 1 306 163 478 (140 019 959)
(831962738} (53357 311) (885310048) (817 074 758) 68 235280
Operating surplus 597 427484 53445904 650873388 579083719 (71 784 669)
Actuarial gains/iosses - - - 1373754 1373754
597427484 53445904 650873388 579088719 (71784 669)
- - - 1373754 1373754
Surplus hefore taxation 597 427 484 53445904 650 873388 580462473  (TO 410 915)
Deficit before taxation 597 427 484 53445904 650873338 580462472 (70 410 915)
Taxation - - - - -
Surplus for the year from 597 427484 53445904 650 873388 580462473 (70 410 915)
continulng operations
Loss on disposal of assets - - -~ {1110183) (1110133}

10




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Reglstration number DCA44)
Annuel Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accmal Basls - :

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounis Dlifference Refarence

budget on comparable between final
' . basls budget and
Figures In Rand actusl

Actual Amount on Cémparable 597 427 484 53445904 650 873 388 679 352340 (71521 048)
Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Asctual

Comparative Statement

Recenciliation

07 0EC 299

11




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALIT
{Reglstration number NG44) NIC Y AUDITOR GENERAL

Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 SOUTH A FRICA

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual A ounf,s, NEC 2199
Budget on Acotual Bagls il G —bithingd

Approved Adjustments  Flnal Budget Agfual amounts  Difference Regference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Flgures In Rand . Fotual—

BUDGET COMMENTS
A - Service charges

Service charges were over budgeted for in the current financlal year. The municipality Is continuously instaiiing
meters but because of the budget constraints, this process is slow and not yielding quick resuits.

B - Rental of facliities and equipment:
The hiring of the facilitizs was lass than what management anticipated.
G - Agency Services:

The municipailty received commission from third-party payments. The actual revenue from these commissions |s
reasonable within the budgeted amount,

D « Reserves:

These are contributions from reserves to fund the budgst. They are maant to fund non-cash expendiiure such as
depreciation,

- Other Income:

One of the major contributors to other income [s the sale of tender documents which did not go as anticipated, Most
of the activity is usually done in the last months of the financial year when the procuremant plan for the next
financlal year Is being implemented.

E - Interest received on investments:

Interest received is more than what was budgeted for dua to the hikes of interest rates by the South African
Reserve bank and the confinuous implementation of the investment policy.

F - Government grants and subsidies:

The variance is due to the Reglonal Bulk Infrastructure Grant which is a Schedule 6B grant whereln the municipality
claim from the Departmerit of Water Services after the condition has bean met.

EXPENDITURE:!
G - Employees-ralated costs:

The budgeted amount was based on an estimated increase of 5% but the Councll approved a 3% increase for the
managers.

H - Remuneration of Councillors:

During the year under review, SALGA did not issus any cirqular for the increment of councillors, hence the variance
and the budget was based oh an estimated annual Increase of 5%.

| - Legal costs:

The litigation costs are within the budgeted figures. In terms of the budget, legal costs are budgeted under
contracted services and seperated on Annual Financial Statements In compliance with GRAP,

12




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

(Registration number DC44)
Annual Financlal Slatements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Acoruzl Basts

Approved  Adjustments  Flnal Budget Acfusl amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between flnal
basls budget and
Flgures in Rand actual

J - Depreciation and amortisation:
Tha varlance Is due to reassessment of ussfulllves.
K = Lease rentals on operating lease:

This Is due to the fact that most of the time the printers were not functioning well. Lease rentals on operating lease
Is budgeted under Other expshses In terms of the budget and seperated on Annual Financlal Statements in
compllance with GRAP.

L - Debt impalrment:
The underspending is due to the Incresse in the amount of old debt that was not paid at year-end.,
M - Bulk purchases: |
The variance is insignificant.
N - Contracted services:
" Included in the amount of contracted services are repalrs and maintenance costs.
O - Transfers and subsidies:
The variance is VAT as the actual amount reported is exclusive of VAT.
P - General expanses;
General expenses are within the budgeted amoéunt.
Q - Rental of facilities and equipment:' o

The hiring of the facliities was less than what management anticipated.

13




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

(Registration number D44}

Annual Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 30 Juns 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Acorual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Flnal Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basls budget and

Figuras [n Rand actual
Statement of Financlal Posltlon
Assels
Current Assets
inventorles 17 765 721 (8957421) 6800300 14827776 6019478
Recelvables from non-exchange 71 663 763 (44 147 107) 27 521 656 532702 (26 988 954)
fransactions
VAT recelvable - - r 21742163 21742183
Recelvables from Exchange 34 097 971 (537141) 33560830 g2310797 28740967
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents 038236102 13240807 951476909 1110225379 158 748470

1061 768 567 (40 400 862} 1 021 367 695 1209628 817 188 271 122
Non-Current Assets
Propetty, plant and squipment 5282 540 476 43 734 075 5320 274 551 5431 380437 105105 886
Intanglble assets 1973 130 59 782 2032012 7 848 122 5616 210
Herllage assets 131 100 - 131 100 131 400 -
Investments in controlled eniities 100 - ) 100 R Y -
Investments o 883 778 o~ 98E3TIY {0 838087 954 308
Other Recelvables . . AL T ET9073 T 879 073

5204 528 585 43 793 657 5 338 322 442 5 457 877 9'1 9 119 855 477
Non-Current Assats 5204 528 585 43703 857 5338322442 5457 877910 119 555477
Current Agsets 1061768 557 (40 400 862)1 021 367 695 1 200 638 817 188 271 122
Total Assets 8 356 297 142 3392995 6 369 690 137 6 667 516 738 307 826 599
Liahilities AUDITOR GENERAL
Current Llabllitles SOUTH AFRIC A ‘
Operating lease liability - - - 226 024 226 024
Payables from exchange 166353769 2 . 47 267 | 158 051 913 {10 785 354)
transactlons fﬁg ? tﬁﬁ[’ Iﬁia
VAT pavable - - - - -
Employes henefit obfigation 2 400 968 . 2 400 963 1 480 000 (820 968)
Unspent cenditional grants and : .- - | 14106643 14106 643
raceipis
Provisions 27 747 471 - 2774T4AT1 32980191 5212720
Payables from non exchanga 116 400 133 (411) 116399722 2094 850 (114 304 872)
transactions

312 902 341 24931087 315395428 208919621 (106 475 80T}

Non-Gurrent Liabllities
Employes banefit obligation 10 386 728 - 10386728 10955000 568 272
Current Liabiiities 312002341 2493087 315395428 208919621 (106 475 807)
Non-Cutrent Liabllities 10386 728 - 10386728 10955000 568 272
Total Lizhilities 323 289 069 2493087 326702156 2192674621 (105 907 535)
Assels . 6356 297 142 3392095 6359 600 137 6667 516736 307 826 599
Liabillies (323 289 089) (2 493 087) (3257821568) (219874 621) 105907 535
Net Assels 8033008 073 899 908 6 033 907 931 G 447 842115 413734134

14




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Reglstration number DC44)
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis . )
Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Referance

hudget on comparebls between final
basis . budget and
Flgures in Rand actual
Net Assets Atfributable to
Owners of Controliing Entity
Reserves

Accumulated surplus 6033008072 B3 937 904 6 0BG 945 876 5 451 003 355 364 057 379

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

07 DEC 2073
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Budget on Accrual Basls I
Appravad  Adjustments  Final Budget Actual ampunts  Differance Refarenc
_budget on compskable _between final
' basis budget @
Figures In Rand actual
Gash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Service Charges 35231000 5743000 40974000 13122790 (27 851 210)
Other revenue 100648341 11594 424 112242 766 8221428 (103021 337)
Transfers and Subsldles - 708835000 29821837 73BE56537 720617345  {9038192)
Operational
Transfars and Subsidies - BBO 572000 26882079 577454079 562787 230 {14 666 849}
Canpltal
Interest Income 30178832 35000000 65178832 @5 o35817 3756 985

1425 465 173

109 041 040 1 534 506 213 1 383 684 610

{150 821 603)

Paymants

Employes costs (317 808 435) (3643 342) (321451777) (294317 757) 27134020

Suppliers (389 805 485) (32 305 768} {421 911 223) (422663 518) (1 042 285)

Grants and subsidies . = (40878 620) (40976 629}
(707 413 890} (35 949110) (743 363 000) (758 247 904) (14 884 904)

Total teceipts 1425465 173 109 041 040 1534 506 213 1 383 684 610 (150 821 603)

Total payments

(707 413 890)

Net cash flows from operating 718 051 283

activities

{35 949 110} (743 363 000) (758 247 904)
73091930 791143213 625436706 (165 706 507)

(14 884 904)

Cash flows from Investing activities

Purchase of proparty, plant and
aquipment

(692 261 900}

(53 793 857) (646 055 757} (475 013 436) 171 042 321

Proceeds from sale of property, - - . 580 580

plant and aquipment

Purchase of other intanglble - - - {7181688) (7 161 &8s8)
assets

Movement In non current 9 884 000 - 9 B84 000 - (9884 000)
Investrrents

Proceads from loans - - - 11 001 11 601

Net cash flows from investing (582 377 900) (53 793 B5T) (636 171 757) {482 183 543} 153 938 214
activities

Net Increase/{decrease) In cash 135673383 19208073 1654971456 143253163 (11718 293)
and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalents at 812446000 (6 057000) 806389000 op6o72216 160583 216
the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at 948 119 383 13 241 073 961360 456 1110225379 148 864 923

the snd of the year

Reconciiiation
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]

ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Registration number DC44)

i ————

1. Significant account policles
The princlpal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these annual financlal staterments are sat out below,
1.1 Basls of preparations

The annual financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), lssued by the Accounting Standards Board In accordanse with Seclicn 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act {(Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accryal basls of accounting and are In accerdance with historical
cast sonvantion as the basls of measurement, unless specified otherwise, They are presented In South African Rand,

These acaounling policles are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out In note 48 Changes in
accounting pollcy.

1.2 Presentation currency
These annual financlal statements are presented in South Afrlcan Rand, which Is the functlonal currenay of the municipallty.
1.3 Golng concern assumptlion

These annual financlal stalements have been praparet based on the expeciation that the municipailty will contihue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.4 Materiallty

Material emissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, indlvidually or collectively, Influence the declsions or
assessmenés of users made on the basis of the financlal statemenis. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission
or misstatemeant judged In the surrounding circumstances. The nature or slze of the informatlon item, or 4 combination of both,
could be the determining factor,

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could influence decislons of users, and sc he materlal, requires consideration
of the characteristics of those users. The Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financlal Statements states that
users are assumed to have a reasonable knowladde of goverment, ifs aclivities, accounting and a willingness to study the
information with reasonable diligence, Therefore, the assessment takes Into account how usetrs with such atirlbutes could
reasonably he expected to be influenced in making and evaluating decisions.

1.5 Significant judgenients and sources of estimation uncertainty

in preparing the annual financial statements, management s requirsd to make estimates and assumptlons that affect the
amounis represented In the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available Information and the
application of Judgement 1s inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results In the future could differ fromt these estimates
which may be matetial to the annual flhanclal statemaents. Sighificant judgements include:

Other slghificant judgements, sources of estimation uncertainty and/or relating Inforniatlon, have been disclosed in the relating
hotas.

Useful lives of waste and water network and other assets

The municipality's management datsrminas the estimated useful lives-and related depraciatlon charges for the waste water and
water natworks, This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated useful fives.

Allowarice for doubtful debts

On debtors an Impairment loss [s recognised In surpius and deficlt when there is objective svidence that it is impalred. The

impairment s measurad as the differance hatwean the dabtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated fulure cash
flows discounted at the effactive interest rate, computed af inttial recognition.
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1.6  Property, plant and egquipment.

Properly, piant and equipment are tangible non-current assets {Including Infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expectad fo be used during
more than one parlod.
The coat of an ltem of property, plant and equipment Is recognised as an asset when;
¢ |t Is probable that future economic benefits or service potentlal associated with the itern will flow to the
munleipality; and
. the cost of the [termn can he measured rellably,

Property, plant and equipment Is Initlally measured at cost,

The cost of an iterm of property, plant and squlpment comprises Its purchase prce, Ineluding Import dutles and non-refundable
purchase taxes, any costs atiributeble to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary far it to be capable of
operating i the manner infended by management. Trads discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an assst is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange far a nen-monetary asset or monstary assets, or a
combination of monstary and non-monetary assets, the asset acqulred is Inftially measured at falr value (the cost), If the
acquired item's falr value was not determinable, it's deamed cost I8 the carrylng amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an ltem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they ars accounted for as
separate [tams {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs ihclude costs Incurred Inllially fo acqulre or consiruct an ltem of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of. If a replacement cost is recognised In the carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment, the carrylng amount of the replaced pait s derecognised.

The Inlijal estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoting the slte on which It Is located is also
Included In the cost of property, plant and eduipment, where the entlty Is obllgated 1o Insur such expenditure, and where the
obligation atlses as a result of acquiring the asset or using It for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs Ih the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and aquipiment ceasas when the fem Is in the location
and condition necessary for It to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

ltems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipmant are recognised when they meat the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major Inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an ttem of property, plant and squipment and which meet the
racognition criterla above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previcus Inspection are deracognised.

Property, plant and aquipment is carried at cost less accumulated depraciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are dapreciated on the straight-ine basis over their expacted useful lives fo their estimatad
residual value.

The useful lives of items of praperty, plant and equipmeant have been assessed as follows:

lternr . Depreciation mathod Average usaful life
Land Straightline Unlimited

Buildings Sfraight-line 10- 40

Plant and machinery Straightine 2-20

Furniture and fixtures Straight-lina 2.20

Meotor vehicles Straighi-ine 4-10

Office equipment Straight-line 2-20
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1.6 - Properiy, plani and agulpment (continued)

Specialised vehicles Straighiline 5418 e
Infrastructure - Roads Stralght-line T
Infractructure - Sanltation Straight-line 2-85
Infrastructure - Water Straight-ine 2.-100

Bins and contalhers Btraight-line 510

Computer squipment Stralght-line 2-10
Emergency equipment Straight-line 2-15

Park homes Strafght-ine 20- 40

Tha depreciable amount of an asset Is allocated on a systematic basls over its useful |Ife.

Each part of an itam of property, plant and equipment with a cost that Is significant In telstlon o the tofal cost of the liem Is
depraclated separately.

The depractatlon method used reflects the pattern In which the asset's fuiure economic baneflte or service potontial are
axpected to be consumed by the munlclpality. The depreclation method applied to en asset s reviewed at least at each
reporting date and, If there has been a significant changs in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
heneflis or sarvice potantlal embodied In the asset, the method |z changed to reflect the changed pattern, Such a change Is
aceounted for as & change In an ascounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether thera is any indicafion that the munlclpality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indlcation exists, the
munlcipallty revises the expected useful life andfor residual value accordingly. The shange is accounted for as a change Ih an
accouniting estimate,

The depreciation charge for each perlod ls recognised In surplus or deficit unless it is ncluded In the carrylng amount of
ahother asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are deracognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further econemlc
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the assetl.

The gain or loss arlsing from the derecognition of an ltem of proparty, plant and squipment is included in surplus or deflclt when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arsing from the derecognition of an ifem of property, plant and equipment is
delermined as the difference between the net disposal praceeds, if any, and the sarrylhg amount of the ltem.

Assets which tha municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are fransferred to Inventories when the rentals end and the assets are avallable-for-sale. Proceeds from salea of
these assets are recognised as revanua. All cash flows on these assets are Included in cash flows from opetating activities in
the vash flow statement.

The municlipallty éeparately discloses expenditure to repalr and malntain preperty, plant and equipment in the notes to the
annual financial statements under note 37,

The munlclpality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construstion or developmerit, In the notes to the annual
financlal statements under note 8.

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable If it elther:

+  is sepurable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, fransferred, licensed, rentad or
exchanged, either Individually or together with a related coniract, ldentifiable assets or llability, regardless of
whather the entity intends to do so; or

*  arises from binding arrangements (Including rights frorn contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describas an arrangement that confars similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were In
the form of a contract. '
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- the asset may be impaired. As a result the assetis tested for impairment and the remalning carrying amount is amortised over

ALFRED NZO D]STR|CT MUNlCIPALITY
(Reglstration numﬁar Do4d) AUDITOR GENERAL

Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 SOUTH AFRICA
Accounting Policies - 07 NEC M7

1.7 Intanglble assets (confinued) ,
|

An intanglble asset is recognised when:
*  [lis probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potdHiE AT RMITEMble to-thegsset wil
flow fo the munleipality; and
+  the cost or fair value of the asset can bs measured reilably.

The munlcipality assesses the probability of expected future aconomic beneiits or service potential usihg reascnable and
supportable assumplions that represent managemesnt's best astimate of the set of economlc condltlons that will exdst over the
useful Iiffe of the agsst,

Where an intanglble asset Is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, lis nitial cost at the date of acquisltion Is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditurs on reaearch (or on the research phase of an nternal project) is recognised as an expanse when it is incurred.

An Intanglble assat arising from development (or from the development phase of an Internal project) Is recognised when:
{tis tachnlcally feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale,

there is an Intention to complate and use or sell it. '

there Is an ability to use or sell It. !
it will generate probable future economic bensfits or seivice potential,

there are avallable technical, finandial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asset.

s the expendlture atirlbutable to the asset durlng Its devalopment can be measured reliably.

* * 9 =

Intanglble assets are carrlod at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses,

An Intanglble asset Is regarded as having an Indefinlte useful lifa when, hased on alt relevant factors, thare is no foreseeabls
fimit to the perled over which the asset is expected to generafe net cash inflows or service potential. Amortlsatlon is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for lmpalrment annually and whenever there |s an Indleation that the
asset may be Impalred. For all sther Intanglble assets amortisation is provided on a stralghi-line basis over thair usefu! ife.

The amortisation perlod and the amortisation mathed for Intanglble assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassassing the useful life of an [ntangible asset with a finlte useful life aftar it was classifled as Indefinlte Is an indicator that
lis usaful life.

Internally genherated brands, mastheads, publishing ties, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assats,

[nternally generated goodwlll la not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisafion Is provided to write down the Intanglble assets, on & stralght-line basis, to thelr residual values as follows:

ltem Depraciation method Averape useful life
Computer software Straight-line 2.5

Infangible assets are derecognised:
» on disposal; or
*  whan no iuture economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. :

The gain or logs arising from the derecognitlon of intangible assets is Included In surplus or deficit when the asset is ;
derecognised {(unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback), !

1.8 Heritage assets

Assets are resources controlled by an municipality as e result of past events and from which future economic bensflis or
setvica potential are expected to flow to the municipallly.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset Is recognised afier deducting accumulated impairment losses.
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1,8 Heritage assets (contlnued)

" Class of belltage assets means a grauping of heritage assets of a similar natul’é*orrunctlcn i an monicipailty's operations that
13 shown as a single item for the purposs of disclesure In the annual financial staiemenis.

Cost Is the amount of cash or cash sthvalents pald or the falr value of the other consideratlon given to acquire an asset at the
time of Its acquisltion or construction or, where applicable, the amount attrlbuted to that asset when initlally recognised In
accordance with the spaciflc requirements of ather Standards of GRAR,

Depreciation Is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amouni of an asset over its useful lIfe,

Falr value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a llablllty settled, between knowledgeakle, willlng parties in
ah arm's length transaction.

Herltage assais are assets that have a cultural, environmantal, historical, natural, scientific, technoldglcal or artistle significance
and ara held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations,

An Impalrment loss of a cash-generating asset Is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying ameunt of an asset axceeds ite
recoverable service amount.

An Inallenable ltem Is an asset that an municipallfy Is requirad by law or otherwise to retain Indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without consent.

Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset's net selling ptice and [ta valus In uge,
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Value In use of a cash-genserating asset s the present value of the future cash flows expected to he derived from an asset or
cash-generating unit,

Value in use of a non-cash-genarating asset is the present value of the asset's remalning service potential,

Tha municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintaln herltage assets In the notes to the financial
statements (see note 37).

The municipality discloses relevant Information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statoments (see nota 12),

Recognition

The municipality recognlses a herltage assel as an asset if It Is probable that future economic benefits or sarvice potential
associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or falr value of the asset can be measurad rallably.

Initial measurement
Hetitage assets are measured at cost.

Where a hetitage asset Is acguirad through a non-exchange transaction, ifs cnst is measured at Its faiy value as at the date of
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Aftar racognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried af [ts cost [ess any accumulated impairment losses.

[mpairment

The municipality assesses at each raporting date whether there is an Indication that it may ba impaired. If any such indication
exists, the municlpailty estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset.
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1.8 Herltage assets (continued)

Transfers

Transfers from harltage assets are only made when the parileular seset ne longer meets the definition of a herltage asset.
Transfers to herltage assets are only made when the asset meets the definitlon of a haritage asset.
Derecognition

The municlpality derecognises herlitage assst on dispesal, or when no future economic benefils or service potential are
expected from It use or disposal.

The gain or loss arlsing from the derocognition of & herltage assst is included In surplus or deflcit when the item ls
derecognised {unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requiras otherwise on a sale and leasaback).

1.9 Financial Instruments

A financlal instrument Is ary contract that glves rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financlal liabllity or a residual
Interest of anothar entity,

The amortised cost of a finencial asset or financial lability s the amount at which the financial asset or financlal lability Is
measurad at Inltial recognition minus principal repeyments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
Interest method of any difference between that Inltlal amount and the maturity amount, and minus any redustlon (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impalrment or uncolfectibillty.

A conoesslonary loan Is a loan granted to or recelved by an aniity on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk Is tha risk that one party to a financlal Instrument will cause a financlal loss for the other party by falling to discharge
an: obligatian.

Currency risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of & financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In
forelgn exchange rates.

Derecognltion is the removal of a previcusly recognised financial asset or financial liabllity from the Municlpalltys statement of
financial position.

The effective interest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financlal llabitity {or group of
financial assets or financlal liabllities) and of allosating the Interest Income or Inferest expense over the relevant period. The
effective Interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futura cash payments or recelpts through the expected life of
the financiat Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financlal asset or financlel
liability, When caleulating the effactive interest rate, an Munlclpallty shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual ferns
of the financlal Instrument (for example, prapayment; call and simllar optlons) but shall not considar future credit losses. The
calculation Includes all fees and points paid or racelved between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effactive
Interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all ather premiums
ordiscounts. There Is 4 presumption that the cash flows and the expecied Iife of a group of similar financlal instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in thosa rare cases when it is not possible to rellably estimate tha cash flows or the expected [ife
of a financial instrument (or group of financial Instruments), the Municipality shall use the confractual cash flows over the full
contractual tarm of the financlal instrument {or group of financlal Instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could-be' exchenged, or a liability sattied, betwaen knowladgeable willing parties in
an arm'’s length transaction, . :

Afinancial assat ls:
*  cash;
-+ arasidual interest of anothet Municipalily; or
*  acontractual right to:
. receive cash or another financial asset from another Municipality; or
- exchange financlal assets or financial (iabilities with another Municlipality under conditions thet are potentiaily
favourable to the Municipality.
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1.9 Financial iInstruments (continued}

A financlal guarantes contract Is a contract that requires the issuer to make specifisd payments o reimburse the holder for a
loss [t Incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due [n accordanca with the orlginel or modified terms of a
debt Instrument.

A financial liability Is any llabliity that is a contractual obligation fo:
= deliver cash or anather financfal aaset to another Munlelpallty; or
»  exchange financia! assets or financial liabilltles under condiiions that are potentlally unfavourable o the Munlcipallty.

Intarest rate risk Is the risk that the falr vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of ehanges In
market Interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountared by an Municlpality in the event of dlfflculty In mseting obligations assoclated with financial
tlabllities that are settlad by dslivering cash or ancther financial agsst.

Loan cbmmltment Iz a flrm commifment to provide credit under pre-spetlfied terms and conditlons.
Loans payable ate financlal tabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms,

Market risk is the rsk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument wilf fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of rlsk: currency rigk, interest rate rsk and other price rlsk,

Other price tisk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes |h
market prices (other than those arlsing from Interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to tha individual flnanclal instrument or |ts Issuer, or factors affecting all similar financtal Ihstruments traded In the
market. ‘

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has falled to make a payment when contractually due,

A residual Interest is any confract that manifests an interest In the assats of an Munigipality after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual Interest includes contributions from owners, which may bé shown as:
*  equlty insttuments or similar forms of unitised capltal;
s 3 formal designation of a transfer of resources {or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an Municlpality's net assets, slther befora the contribution ateurs or at the time of the contribution; or
*  aformal agreemsnt, in relation to the contrlbution, establishing or increasing an existing financlal Interest in the net
assels of an Munisipality.

Transaction costs are Incremental costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition, Issue ar disposal of a financlal asset or
financlal liability. An Incremental cost Is one that waoukl not have been incurred if the Municlpality had nct acgulred, issued or
disposed of the financial instrumant.

Flnanaial Instruments at amortised cost are non-derivatlve financial assets or non-derivative flnancial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

+  the Munlcipality designates at fair value at initial racognition; or

s are held for frading.

Financial insiruments at cost are invesiments in residual interests that do not have a guoted markat price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannof be raliably measured.

AUDITCR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

07 DEC 2023
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1.9 Financlal instruments {continued)

Classification

The Municipallty has the following types of financlal asseis {classes and category) as reflactad on the face of the statement of
flnanclal positlon or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Unlisted Investmenis Fihanelel asset measurad at amottlsed cost
Investments in Fixed Deposlis Financlel assst measured at amorilsed cost
Long Term Recelvables Financiel asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchangs transactions Financlal asseat measured at amortlsed cost
Cash and cash eguivalenis - Call Deposlis Flhanclal asset measured st emortised cost
Cash and cash equlvalents Financial assat measured at amortised cost

The munlelpality has the following types of financial liabllities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement
of financial posltlon or in the notes theretc:

Class Category
Long term llablities Financial llability measured at amortised cost
Payables Flnanclal liabllity measured at amortised cost

Initial Recognitioh

The sentity shall recognise financla) asset or financlal liability in its statement of financial position when the entlly becomes a
party o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial labllities -

The entity measures a financlal asset and financial liability inftlally at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly

“attributable to the acquisition or ssue of the financial asset or financlal llabllity. The entity measures a financial assef and

financial liabilty Iniflally at Its falr value (if subsequently measured at fair valug). The entity first assesses whether the
substance of a concesslonary loan s In fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity analyses a concessionary loan into Its
component parts and accounts for each component separately,

The entity accounts for that part of a concesslonary loan that is:

S a soclal beneflt in accordancs with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentatlon of Financial
Statements, where If is the issuer of the loan; or
> nor-exchange revenue, In accordance with the standard of GRAPan revenue from Non- exchange

Transactlons (Taxes and Trangfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
Subsequent measurement of the financial assets and financial llabilitios

The antity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

- Financial instruments at falr value.
> Financial instruments at amortised cost
> Financial instrumerits at cost

All financial assels measured at amortlsed cost, ara subjact to an impairment review.
Reclassiflcation
The entity does nof reclassify a financial instrumant while it is issued or held unless it is

- combined instrumaent that is required to be measured at fair valus ;or
» an invesiment in & residual interest that mests the requirements for reclassiication.
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

Where the entity cannot rellably measuirs the falr value of an embedded derivaiive that has bean separated from a host
confract that'Is a financial instrument &t a subsequent reporting date it measures the combined Instrumant at falr value, This
requlres a reclassification of the Instrument from ameortised cost or cost to falr value, [f fair value can no longer be measursd
reliably for an Investment In a resldual interest measured at falr value, the enlity reclassifles the inveatment from falr velue to
cost. Tha carrylng amount at the date that falr value Is ne longer available bacemes the cost, If a reliable measure becomes
avallable for an investment in a resldual Interest for which a measure was previcusly not available , and the Instrument would
have been raqulted to be measured at fair value, the entlty reclassifles the Instrument from cost to falr value.

Gains and L.osses

A gain or loss arlsing from a change in the falr vaiue of a financlal asset of financial llabllity measured at falr value Is
recognised In surplus or deflcit.

Far financlal asssts and financial liabilitles measured at amottised cost o cost, a galn or loss ls recognised in surplus or defici
when the flnanclal assat or financial liabllity I8 unrecognised or Impalrad or through the amortisation process.

impairment and uncollsctabliity of financial assets

The entlty asasases at the end of each reporfing period whether thers Is any oblective evidence that a financlal asset or group
of assets Is Impaired,

Financlal assets measuraed at amortised cost

If thers is objective evidence that an impairment losa on financlal assets measured at amortised cost has been Incurrad , the
amoeunt of the loss Is measured as the diffsrence betwean the assets carrying amount and the presant value of the estimated
future cashflows {excluding future credit losses that have not been Incurred ) discounted at the finanoclal asset's original
affactive infetest rate. The carryling amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of tha loss [s recognised in surplus or deflelt.

If, 1 a subsequent petiod, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be relaled objectively to an
event ocourring after the Impaltment was recognised, the previously recognised impalrment loss s reversed direcily OR by
adjusting an allowance account, The reversal does not result In a carmrying ameunt of the financlal asset that exceeds what the
amotrtised cost would have keen had the Impairment not been recognised at the date the impalrment is reversed. The amount
of the raversal is recognised In sueplus or deficit.

Financial Assets measured af gosts

If there Is objective evidence that an impalrment loss hag been Inourred on an Investment in a residual Interest that Is not
measured at fair valug because its falr value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impalitnent loss is measured as
the difference betwesn the catvying amount of the financlal agset and the prasent value of the astimated fufure cash fiows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impalrment losses are nof reversed.
Derecognition

Financial Assots

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting
The entity derecognises financlal asset anly when:

> the contractual rights to the cash flows from the flanancial asset expire, are settled or waivad;
> the entity transfers to another party substantlally all the risks and rewrads of ownership of the financial asset; or
> the entlty, desplte having relained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset , has

transfered control of the asset o another party and tha other party has practical ability to sell the assel in its enterety to
an un related perty, and Is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the
transfer. In this case, the entity :
- Deragognise the asset; and
- recognise separataly any rights and ohligations created In the transfer
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1.9 Financlal instruments {continued) i

The carrying amounis of the transferrad asset are allocated batween the rights or abligations retasined and t hse transferred on
the basls of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created righte-and-ahi o at falr values at
that date. Any difference betwean the conslderation received and the amounts recognised In the surplus or deficlt in the perlo
of the transfer. )

If the entity transfers a financlal asset in a transfer th a transfer that qualifies for derscognltion in its entirety and retains the
right fo sarvice the financial asset for a fee, It recognises alther a servicing asset or & servicing llablifty for that servicing
contract. If the foe to be recelved ls not expected fo be mara than adeguate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset Is
;’ecog?l?ed for the servicing right at an amount determined an the basls of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger
inanclal asset,

If, as a result of a Wransfer, a flnanclal asset Is deracognised In Its entirety but transfer reaults In the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financlal llabllity, or a servicing liability, the enlity recognlze the new financial asset, financlal
liability or sarvicing labillly at falr value,

On deracognition of a financial asset in its entirety, tha difference betwsen the carrying amount and the sum of the
consldaration received is recognised In surplus or deflelt. If a transfer does not result in derecogniilon because the entity has
retalned substantizlly al the rlsks and rewards of ownershipof the transferred asset, the entlly continues to racognise the
transferred asset In Its entirely and recognise a financial liability for the conslderation recelved. In subsequent perlods, the
entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asssf and any axpense incurred on the finencial liabllity, Nelther the asset,
and the associated liability nor the revenue , and the assoclated expenses are offset.

Flnancial Liabillfles

The enilty removes a financial liakility { or a part of a financlal liability) from its statement of financlal poslition when It [s
axtingulshed l.e - when the obligatlon speciiled In the contract s dlscharged, cancelled, explres or walved, A exchange
between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as having
extinguished the original financial liabllity and a new financtal llabllity I8 recognised . Similarly, & substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financlal llability or a part of if is accounted for as having extinguished the otiginal financial liabllity and
having recognised & new financlal liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a finencial liability { or part of a financlal Eabllity) extinguishing or transfarred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non cash- assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deflolt. Any liabilities that are walved , forglvan or assumed by another entity by way of a non- exchange transacticn
are acoounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP onh revenue from non-exchange Transaction {Taxes and Transfars)

Presentatlon

Interast relating to a financial instrument or component that is a financial fabillty is derecoghlsed as revenue or expense In
surplus or deflit,

Distributlons fo holders of residual interests are recoghised by the entity directly In net assets. Transactlon costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a dedustion from net assels . Incotme tax { where applicable ) relating to distributions to
holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on & residual interasts are acccunted for in accordanca with the
International Accounting Standards on Income Taxas.

A financial asset and a financial llabllity are only offsat and net amount presented in the statement of financial position when
the entity currently has a legally anforceabla right to sat off the recognised amounts and Intends either to setfls on a net basis,

or to realise the asset and settle the labllity simultaneously. In accounting for 4 transfer of 8 financial asset that does not
qualify for derecognitlon, the aniity does not offset the transfarred assat and the associated fiabllity.

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if It transfers substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership. A lessa is
classified a5 an operating lease If It does not transfer substanfially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,

When & lease includes both land and bulidings elements, the entity assesses tha classification of each element separately,
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1.10 Leases (continued)

Dperating leases « leasor o e—— "
Oparating lease revenuea is recognised as revenue on a stralghtline basls over the lease term.,

Initial direct eosts incurred in negatiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense ovar the lease ferm on the sama basls as the |ease revanus,

The aggregale cost of Incentlves Is recognleed as a reducilon of rental revenus aver the isase term on a siraight-line basis,
The aggregate banefit of incentlves is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a stralight-line basls.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leasas « lesses

Operating lease payments are recognlsed as an expense on a siraight-line basls over the lease term, The difference belwean
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognlsed as an operating lease asset or ligbllity.

1.11 Inventories

Inventories ara inftlally measured at cost except whare inventorles are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then thelr
costs are thelr falr value as ai the dais of acquisition.

Subsaguenily Inventorias are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Inventerles are measured at the lowar of cost and currént replacement cost where they are held for,
»  distribution at no charge or for & nominal charge; or
¢ consumption In the production process of goods o be distiibutad af no charge or for a nominal chatge.

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs nacessary to maka the sale, exchange or distrbution.

Current replacement cost Is the cost the munlcipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reparting date.

The cost of Inventories compriges of all costs of purchage, costs of conversion and other costs Incurred in bringlhg the
inventorles to their present location and condition.

The cost of Inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeabie and goods or services prodused and segregated for
specific projacts is assighed using specific identification of the Indlvidual costs.

The cost of Inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all Inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipelity.

When Inventerlas ara sold, the carrylng amounts of those Inventories are recognised as an expense in the peried In which the
related ravenue is recognised, If there is no related revanue, the expsnsas are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
refated services are renderad. The amount of any write-down of Inventories to net reallseble value or current replacement cost
and all Josses of inventorles are recognised as an expense in the period the wiite-down or loss oceurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of lnventorles, arising from an Ingreasa In net reallsable value or current replacement cost, are
recognisad as & reduciion in the amount of invertories recognised as an expense tn the petiod in which the reversal ocours.

Water Inventory
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1.1 Inventorles {continued)

Water is regarded as Inventory when the Municipality purchases water in bulk with the Intention 16 1558 & CONSUMers oF
to use It Internally, or where the Municipality has Incurred purification costs on water obtained from natural resources (rain,
rivers, dams, eto). However, water In natural resources, that are fllled by raln and that has not vet been trested, and is not
under the control of the Municipality and cannot be measured rellably as thers is no cost attached to the water, and it Is
thersfore not recognised In the atatement of financial Posltion. Water that is found in its natural stata, such as In rivers, dams,
streams, lakes, borsholes, and the sea meets the definition of a non-living resource. From time to ime an entity may intervene
as part of its mandate or setvice delivery objectlive. For exampla an entily may undertake measures to ensure that the quallty of
the water in rlvers and dams Is maintained. This will not resutt in & change In the water's natural state, and the deftnition of a
ron-fiving resource Is therfore still met. The Municlpality does not have non-living resources and GRAP 110 is not applicable to
it.

The basis of detsrmining the cast of water purchased and not yet sold at the statement of Financial position date comprises all
cosls of purchases, cost of converslen, and other costs incurrad In bringlng the Inventory to lis present location and candltion,
net of frade discounts and rebates. Water is valued by using the weighted average method, at the lowest of purified cost and
net reallsable value, hsofar as It ls storad and contralled In resetvolrs at year-and.

1,12 Impairment of cash-generating assots

Cash-generating assels are assets used with the objective of generating @ commercial return. Commercial return means that
posltive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

lmpalrment is & foss In the future economic benefits or service potantlal of an asset, over and abovs the systematlc recognition
of the loss of the assef!’s future economlc benefits or sarvice patentlal through depraclation (amartisation),

Catrying amount is the amount at which an asset Is recognised In the statement of financlal position after deducting aty
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses theraon,

A cash-generatling unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash Inflows from continulng use that are largely independent of the cash inffows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance easts and ingome tax
expense.

Depreciation (Amottisation) is the systematic allocation of the depraclable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Falr valus less costs to sell Is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset ar a cash-ganerating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value In use.
Useful life s elther: ) .

+  the parlod of ime over which an asset Is expected to be wsed by the munlcipality; or

*  the number of produstion or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the munlcipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the oriteria to designate assets as cash-generating assets or non-cash-
generating assels, are as follows:
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1.12 'lmpalrment of cash-gensrating assefs (continued)

Daslgnation

At Initial recognition, the municipallly designates an assst as non-cash-generating, or an asset or cash-generating unit as cash-
generating. The deslgnation is made on the hasis of a municipality's ebjectlva of using the asset,

The munlicipalliy desltgnates an asset or a ¢ash-generating unlt as cash-generating when!
+ ite objsctive Is to use the assst or 8 cash-generating unlt in a manner that generates a commercial return; such that
¢ the assef or cash-genstating unlf will generate positive cash flows, fram gontinuing use and its ulﬁmate disposal, that
are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

An assot usad with the objective of generating a commerctal refurn and service dellvery, is designated elther as a cash-
generallng assst or non-cash-generating asset based on whether the municlpality expacts to use that asset to generate a
commercial return. When H is not clear whether the objoctive is to use the asset (o generais commaercial return, the munlcipallty
deslgnates the assel as a non-cash-generating asset and applles ths accounting polley on Impafrment of Non-cash-generating
aassets, rather than this accounting polloy,

identiflcation
When the carrying amount of a cash-genarating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, It is impaired.

The municipallty assesses at each reporting date whether there iIs any indlcation that a cash-generating asset may be
impalred. [ any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is ahy Indication of Impalrment, the municipality also tests a cash-genetating thtanglble asset with
an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating Intangible aseet not yvet avallable for use for Impalrment annually by comparing its
cartying amount with its recoverable amount. This Impalrment fest ls performed atf the same time every year, If an intangible
assot was Initlally recognised during the current reporting perlod, that intangible asset was tested for Impalrment before the end
of the current reporting period.

Yalus Ih use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset Is the present vatue of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing uge of an asset and from Its disposal at the end of its useful lifa.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future eash Inflows and ouiflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and frot iis ultimale disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows.

Basls for estimeates of future cash flows

In measurlng value In uge the municipality:
base cash flow projections on reasonable ahd supportable assumptions thaf represent management's best esilmate
of the range of economic conditions that will exist over ths remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight Is glven
o external evidence;

*  base cash flow projections on the moest recent approvad financial budgets/foracasts, but excludes any estimated
future cash Inflows or outflows expecied to arige from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the
assel's performanca. Projactions based on 1hese budgeatsfforecasts covers a maximum perlod of five years, unless a
longer pariod can be justified; and

»  gstimate cash flow projactions beyond the penod covered by the most recent budgetsfforacasts by extrapolaing the
projections based on the budpetsioreoasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unlass an
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed tha longterm average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries In which the entity operafes, or for the marlcet in which the asset is usad,
unless a higher rate can be justified.
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1.12 Impalment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Composlilon of estimatas of future cash flows

Estimates of future cesh flows include:

«  projections of cash Inflows from the confinuing use of the asset;

* projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash Inflows from contlnuing use of the
asset {Including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a
reasonabls and conslstent bagls, fo the asset; and

= net cash flows, If any, to be received (or pald) for the disposal of the asset at the end of Its useful life.

Estimates of fulure cash flows exclude:

* cash Infiows or outflows from financing activities;-and

*  income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or pald) for the disposal of an asset at the end of Its useful life is the amount that
the municipality sxpacts to obtaln from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after daducting the estimated costs of disposal,
Discount rate
The discount rafe le a pre-tax rate that reflests current market assessments of the time value of monay, rapresented by the
current risk-free rate of Interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have nof heen
adjusted.
Recoghition and measurement {individual asset)

If the roooverabla amount of a cash-generating asset la less than Iis carrylng amount, the carrying amount of the asset Is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction Is an Impairment loss,

An impairment loss is recogrised immedlately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating agset |s treated as & revalualion decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrylng amount of the cash-generating assef to which it
relates, the municipality recognises a liabllity only fo the extent that is a requiremant in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreclation {amortlsation) charge for the cash-gensrating asset Is adjusted in
future periods ic allncate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any}, on a systematic
basis aver Its remalning useful Ilfe.
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1.12 impairment of cash~generating assets {continued)
Cash-generating unlts

I thete is any Indlcation that an asset may be Impairad, the recoverable amount Is estimated for the Individual asset, If it is not
possibla to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of tha
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash~generating unit). ‘

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that assel or group of assats Is Identified as a
cash-genarating unit, even If some or all of the output iz used internally. If the cash Inflows generated by any asset or cash-
generating unlt are afiected by internal transfer pricing, the munlcipallty use management's best estimate of future price(s) that
could be achlaved in arm’s length trangaciions in estimating:
= tha future cush inflows used to determine the assel's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
o the fufuwre cash outflows used to determine the value In use of any othar assets or cash-generating units that are
affectad by the intemal transfer pricing.

Cash-genarating unlts are identifled conslstently from petlod to period for the same asset or types of assets, Unless a change
Is justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-genarating unlt ls determined on a basls consiatent with the way the racoverable ameunt of the
cash-genarating unit Is determined.

An impalrment loss Is recognised for & cash-generating unlt f the recoverable amount of the unlt is less than the carrying
amount of the unlt. The Impairment is allocated to reduce the earrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unlf on &
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each assat In the unit, These reductions In ¢arrying amounts are treaied as
impalrment losses on individual assets,

In allocating an impalrment loss, the entity does not reduce the catrylng amount of an asset balow the highest of:
s its falr value |less costs 1o sell (if determinable);
* its value in use (If daterminable); and
v Zero,

The amount of the Impairment loss that would otherwise have heen allocated to the asset Is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit,

Where a non-cash-generafing asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportien of the canrying amount of that non-
cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-genearating unit.
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112 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued}

Reversal of impalrment loss

The municlpality assesses at each reporiing date whether there Is any indlcation thet an Impalrment loss recognised In prior
periods for a cash-genarating asset may no longer exlst or may have decremsed. If any such indicatlon exists, the entity
estimates the racaverable amount of that asset,

An Impairment loss recognised In priar periods for a cash-gensrating asset is reversed [f there has besn a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount sihce the last Impalrment loss was recognised. The carying
amount of the asset is increased 1o Its recoverable amount. The Increase Is a reversal of an Impalrment loss, The Increased
carrying amotint of an asset aftrlbutable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have baen determined (net of depreclatlon or amortisation) had no impaltment loss been recognlssd for the asset in prior
petiods. .

A reversal of an impalrment loss for a cash-ganarating assel is recognised Immediately in surplus or deflcit,
Any reversal of an Impalrment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset Is treated as a revaluation Increasa.

After a reversal of an Impairment loss is recognised, the depreclation (amertisation) charge for the cash-generating asset Ia
adjusted in future pericds to allooate the cash-gensrating asset's révised carrylng amount, less Its residual valus (if any), on a
systematic basis over Its remalhing useful iife.

A reversal of an impalrment loss for a cash-generating unlt is allocated to the cash-generating sssets of the unit pre rata with
the carrylng amounts of those assets. These Increases in carrylng amounts are freated as reversals of impalrment losses for
Individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset conttibuting service
potentlal to a cash-generaiing unit.

In allocating & reversal of an Impalrment loss for a cash-generating unlt, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased abave
the lower of:
*+  [ts recoverable amount (If determinable); and
*  the carrylng amount that would have been datermined (net of amortlsation or depreciation) had no impalment loss
been recognised for the asset In prior perlods.

The amount of the reversal of the Impalrment loas that would otherwlse have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rafa to
the other assets of the unit.

1.13 Impalrment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the oblective of generaling a commercial return. GCommercial return means that
positive cash flows are expacted to ba slgnifisantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the fiure economic benefits or service potentlal of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Cartylng amount is the amount af which an assset is recognised in the statement of financlal position after deducting any
accumulated depraciation and aceumulated impairment losses thereon,

A cash-generaling unit |s the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely indepandent of the cash Infiows from other assets or
groups of agsels,

Costs of disposel afe Inclemental costs directly attributabla to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tex
expanse. A ’

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful [fe.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable fram the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing partles, less the costs of disposal.
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1.13 Impalrment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Recoverable service amount Is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value [ess costs to sell and 1ts valua In use.

Useful life Is elthet:
+  the perlod of fime over which an asset Is expected to be used by the municipallty; or
’ the number of production or similar uniis expeciad to be obtalned from the assat by the munlcipality.

Judgemsnts made by management In applylng the criteris io designate assets as non-cash-generating assets or cash-
generaiing assets, arg as follows:

Deslignation

Atinitlal recognition, the munlcipatlty designates an asset as non-gash-generating, or an asset or cash-generating unit as cash-
generating. The designatlon s made on the basis of a munlcipality's objective of using the asset,

The municipality desighates an asset or & cash-generating unit as cash-generating when;
«  |ts objeclive Is to use the asset or a cash-generating unit in a manner that generates a commercial return; such that
*  the asset or cash-generating unlt will generate positive cash flows, from continuing use and its ultimate dlsposal, that
are expected to ba significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

The municipalify deslgnates an asset as non-cash-generating when lis objective is not {o use the asset to generafe a
commetcial refurn hut to deliver services,

An asset used with the objective of generating a commerclal return and service delivery, is designated elther as a cash-
generafing assat or non-cash-generating asset based on whether the municlpality expects to use thai asset to generate a
commerctal retun, When It is not clear whether the oblectlve Is to use the asset to generate a commerclal return, the
municlpality deslignates the asset as a non-cash-generating asset and applies this accounting policy, rather than the
accounting policy on Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets.

Identiflcation
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-genarating asset excesds its recovetable service amaunt, it is impalred.

The municipalily assesses at each reporfing date whether there is any indleation that a non-cash-generating asset may be
Impaired. If any such indication exlsts, the municipality estimatee the recoverable service armount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any Indicatlon of Impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an Indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for Impairment annually by
comparing Its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This Impairment test is performed at the sama time svery
year. If an Infangible asset was Initially recognised during the current reporting perlod, that intangible asset was tested for
Impaitment before the end of the cuirent reporting period,

Value ih use
Value in use of hon-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-gash-ganerating assets remaining service potentlal.

Tha present vaiue of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets s determined ueing the following
approach:
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1.13 Impalrment of nan-cash-gensrating assets (continued)

Recognitlon and measuwrement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than is carrying amaunt, the carrying amount of the
asset s reduced to Its recoverable service amount. This raduction is an Impalrment loss.

An impairment [oss Is recognised immedlately In surplus or deficit,
Any impairment loss of a revalused non-cash-generating asset is ireated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an Impalrtmant loss Is greater than the carrying amount of the non-gash-gensrating asset to
which it relates, the munleipally recognises a liability only to the extent that Is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP,

After the recognition of an Impalrment loss, the depraciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset Is
adjustad [n future perfads to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less Iis residue) value (If any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment [oss

The munlcipallty assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indicatlon that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased, If any such Indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impalnment loss recognisad In prior periods for a non-cash-generating assat [ reversed If there has been a change in the
estimates used {o determine the assel's recoverable service amount since the last Impalrment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to |ts recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an Impalrmant [oss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attribuable to a reversal of an impalrment loss does not exceed the canying
ameunt that would have béen determined {net of depreclation or amortisation) had no Impairment Joss beeh recognlsed for the
asset in pHor perlods.

A reversal of an Impalrment loss for a non-cash-gensrating asset Is recognised Immediataly in surplus or deficlt,

Any reversal of an impalrment losg of a revalued non-cash-generating asset Is treated as a revaiuation increase.
-generating asset

%ﬁg kit M EFtksIdual value (if any),
SOUTH AFRICA

The redesignation of asseis from & cagh-generating asset to a non-cash-g neratlr{g asset of from a non-cas
to & cash~-generating asset only ocqur when thers Is clear evidence that suih a redesignation is appropriate.

After a reversal of an Impaitment loss Is recognised, the depreclation {amgrt
Is adjusfed in future periods to allocate the non-cash-genarating asset’s revjse
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Redesignation

-generating asset

1.14 Employes benefits
Employee benefils are all forms of constderation given hy an municipality in exchange for service rendared by employees.

A qualifying insurance pollcy Is an insurance polley Issuad by an insurer that Is not a related party {as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting municipality, if the proceeds of the policy can be used enly to pay or
fund employee henefits under a defined banefit pian and are not available to the reperting municipality's own creditors {even in
liquidation) and cannot be peid to the reporting municipality, unless either:
¢ the proceeds reprasent surplus assets that are not needed for tha policy to mest alt the related employee benefit
obligations; or
s the proceeds are relurned to the reporting munlcipality to reimbursa it for employee benefits already paid,

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
. an municipality's decision to terminale an employee's employment before the normal retirement date; or
*  an employea's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employes benafits are employse benefits {other than post-employmeant benefits and termination banefits) that
are not due to be sattled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employaes render the related sarvics,
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1.14 Employee henefits {continued)
Vested employse beneflts are employes benefits that are not conditional on future employment,

Composite soclal secutlty programmes are estabilshed by legislation and operate as mulfl-employer plans o provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide beneflts that are not consideration in exchange for service rendsred by employeas.

A constructive obligation is an abligation that derives from an munleipality's actions where by an established pattern of past
pragtice, published policies or a sufficlently specifie current statament, the munlclpality has ndlcated to other perties that it wilt
accept certaln responsibilities and as a result, the municipelity has created a valid expsctation on the part of those other parties
that it will dlscharge thoss responsibilities.

Short-term employee benafits

Short-term empldyee bensfits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be safiled within twelve
meonths aftar the end of the parlod in which the employees render the related servics.

Short-term employee benefits include ters such as:
wages, salarss and saclal security contributions;

. short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and pald sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences [s due to bé setfled within twelve months after the end of the reparting period In which the employess
render the related employee service;

*  bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within fwelve months after the end of the reporting
period In which the employees render the related service; and

s por-monataty bensfits (for example, medleal care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for aurrent employeaes, .

Whan an employee has renderad service to the entity during a reporting pariod, the enfity recognises the undiscountad ameunt
of shori-term employee henefits expected to be pald in exchangs for that setvice:

*  as a liability (accrued expense), aiter déducting any amount already paid. if the amount already pald exceeds the
undiscountad amouni of the bensfits, the municipality recognises that excess as an asset (prepald expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in fufure payments or a cash refund; and

° as ah expanse, unless ancther Standard requires or permits the Inclusien of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost-of compensated akbsences Is recoghised as an expense s the employses render services that increase
their entitlemert of, In. the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence ocours, The municipality measures the
expocted cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional ameunt that the entity expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the repotting date.

The entity re!t;ognlses the expecied cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments whan the municlpality has a
present legal or constructive abligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
chbligation can be made. A present obllgation exists when the antity has no realistls slternative but to make the payments.,

Post-employment heneﬂts
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than terminatlon beneflts) which are payable after the complet!on of
ertployment.

Post-employment hanefit plans are formal or informal arrangemants under which an municlpallty provides post-employment
benefits for one or more employees.

Mulli-employer plans are defined contribution plans {other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined beneilt plans (other than state plans)} that pool the assets contributed by varlous entities that are not undar common
confrof artd use those assets to provide banefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and
benefit levels are determined without regard (o the identity of the entity that employs the amployess concarned.
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1.14 Employes benefits (¢conflnued)
Multl-employer plans and/or Biate plans and/or Composlite soclal security programmes

The municipality classifies a multi-employer plan andfor stale plans and/or composite social security programmes as a defined
contribution plan or a defined benafit plan under the termas cf the plan {Including any constructlve abligation that goes beyond
the formal ferms).

Wharse a plan Is a defined contributlon plan, the municlpality accounts for In the same way as for any other defined contribution
plan.

Wherts a plan is a defined benefit plan, the municipality account for its proportionate share of the dafinad beneflt obligation,
plan assets and cost associated with the plan in the same way as for any other defined benefit plan.

When sufflcient information is not avallable io use defined benefit accounting for a plan, that is a defined beneflt plan, the
municipality account for the plan as If it was a defined contribution plan.

Insured henefits

Where the entity pays insurance premfums to fund a post-employment beneflt ptan, the munlcipality treats such a plan as a
defined confrlbution plan unless the munlcipailty wlll have (sither directly ar Indirecily through the plan) a legal or constructive
obllgation fo elther:
. pay the employea benefits directly when they fall due; or
*  pay further amounts if the Ihsurer does not pay all future employee bensfits relating to employee service In the
current and prior reporting perlods.

If the municipality retalns such a legal or constructive obligation, the antity treats the plan as a definad henefit plan.
Post-amployment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribuifon plans are postemployment banefit plans under which the municipality pays fixed centributions into a
separate municlpallly (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefils relating to employee service in the current and prior perieds. .

When an employes has rendered service to the municipality during a reporting perlod, the municipality recognises the
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:

» as a lability {(accrued expshse), after deducting any contibutlon already pald. If the contribution already paid
excesds the contributlon due for service before the reporting date, the municlpality recognises that excess as an
asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead fo, for example, a reduction in future payments or
a cash refund; and

s as ah expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contrlbutlon In the cost of an asset.

Where contribufions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due whelly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
pariod in which the employaes render the related service, thay are dlscounted. The rate used to discount reflacts the time value
of moneay. The currency and farm of the financlal Instrument selected to reflact the time value of money is consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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1.14 Employee bansilis {conflnued)

Post-employmant benefita: Defined bensfif plans

Definad bensfit plans are post-smplayment benefit plans other than defined contdbution-plapg:———————————

Actuarial gains and losses cornprise experlence adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually ccourred) and the effects of changes In actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined
bensflt iablity the municlpality recognises actuarial gains and losses In surplus or deficlt In the reporting petled in which they
ocCur, :

Assets held by & long-ferm employee beneflt fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the
reporting munlelpality) that are held by an municipalityy (a fund) that Is legally separate from the reporting municlpalltyy and
exXlsts solely fo pay or fund employee benefits and are avallable to be used only to pay or fund employes benefits, are not
tatvelil.'f;alblat ;10 the reporting municipality’s own craditers {even In liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporiing municlpallty,
uniess elther:

s the remalning assefs of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related smployee bensflt obligations of the plan or the

raporfing municipality; or
»  the assets are returned to the raporting municipaiity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Current service cost Is the increase In ithe present value of the deiined bansfit obligation resulling from employee service in the
currant pericd.

Interest cost Is the increass during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arlses because the
benefits ars cne period closer to settlerment.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in ptior pariods,
resulting in the current perlod from the Introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other lang-term employee
beneflis. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are Introduced or changed so that the present value of the
deflned benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing hanefite are changed so that the present valug of the defined
benaflt obligation decreases). In measurlng lts defined beneflt liabilily the entity recognises past service cost as an expense in
the reporting petlod in which the plan is amended.

Plan assels comprise assets held by a long-term emploves bhenefit fund and qualifying insurance pollcles.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expectad future
payments required to seltle the obligation resulting from employee service In the current and prior periods,

The returt on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distrlbutions and other revenue derlved from the plan assets, together
wlih reallsed and unraalised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs. of administering the plan (other than those
included In the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined beneflt obligation) and less any {ax payable by the plan
itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obllgation undar the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any sonstructive
abligation that arlses from the entlty's informal practices. Informal practices give rise o a consfructive obligation where the
antity has no reallstic alternativa but to pay employee benefits. An exampla of a cohatructive obilgation ts where & change In
the entity’s Informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to lts relationship with employess.

The amount recognised as a defined benheflt lability Is the net total of the following amounts:
+  the prasent value of the defined benefit oblfgation at the reporting date;
«  minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be seitled directly;
»  plus any Hability that may arlse as a result of a minimum funding requiremant

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negatlve (an asset). The entity measures the resuiting asset at the
lower of;
. the amount defermined above; and
+  the present valus of any economic beneafits available in the form of refunds fram the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The pressnt value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which
reflects the time value of monay.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or defisit,
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1.4 Employee benefits {(confinued) T ——— j

Tha entlty determines the preseni value of defined henefi obligallons and the falr value of any plan assets with sufficlant
regularity such that the amounts recegnlsad in the annual financlal statements do not differ materlally from the amounts that
wauld he deletminad at the reporting date.

The entity recognlses the net total of the foliowing amounts In surplus or deficlf, except to the extent that another Standard
requilres or permlis thelr Inclusion in the cost of an asset; ‘
¢ ourrent servics cost;
Interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement righis; -
actuarial galns and losses;
past service cost;
the effect of any curtallments or seftloments; and
the effect of applying the lImit on a defined benefit asset {negative defined benefit lability).

The entity uses the Projacted Unlt Credit Method to determina the present vaiue of its defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, whers applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unlt Cradit Method (sometimes known as
the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service o as the benefitlyears of sarvice method) seas each period of seivice as
giving rlse to an additional unit of beneflt entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obilgation.

In determining the present value of s defined beneilt obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost, an entity shall ativibute benefit to periods of service under the plan's beneflt formula. However, if an
employee's service In later years will lead to & materally higher level of benafit than in earlier years, an entity shall attribute
benefit on a siraighi-line basis from:
+  the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service); until
s the date when further service by the employee wlll leed to no material ameunt of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaties separately for each plan. The results of the
valuatlon are updated for any materlal transactions and other materlal changes In clraumstances (Iheludlhg changes in market
ptices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtallment or setilement of a defined benafit plan when the curtallment or
sefflement oceurs. The gain or logs on a curtaliment or settlement comprises:

«  any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and

« any resulfing change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtallment or settlement, the entity re-measure the chligation (and the related plan assefs, If
any) using current actuarial assumptions {ncluding ctrent market Interest rates and other current market prices).

When It s virtually certaln that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settie a defined benefit
chbllgation, the right to reimbursemeit is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at falr value. In all other
respects, the assat is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined banefit
plan is [OR is nof] prasented as the net of the amount recogntsed for a relmbursement.

The enfity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating fo another plan when the entity has a legally
enforceable right to use a surplus In dne plan o setile obligations under the other plan and intends either o setlle the
obllgations an a net basis, or to realise the surplus in che plan and settle Its obligation under the other plan simultansously.
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1.14 Employee heneflts (continued)
Actuarlal assumptions
Actuarlal assumptions are unblased and mufually compatible.

Financlal assumptions ars based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the perlod over which the obligations are to
be settled,

The rate used to discount post-amployment beneflt abligationg (both funded and unfunded) raflect the tfme value of mornsy.
The currengy and fetm of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money |8 consistent with the currency
and estimated tenm of the post-employment bensfit obligations.

Post—employmem benefit obligations are measured on a basls that reflects:

estimated future salary Increases:

»  the beneflts set out In the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive chligation that goes beyond those
terms) at the reparting date; and

«  eslimated future changes In the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under & defined benefit
plan, if, and only If, slther:

=  those changes were enacted beafora the reporting date; or

+  past history, or other rellzble evidence, indicates that those atate beneflts will change In some predictable mannar,
for example, In line with future changes in general price levels or ganeral salary levels,

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated fulure changes in the cost of medical serviges, resulting from both
Inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Other post retlrement obligatlons

Ths munlclpality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratulties upon retirement te some
retirees.

The entitlement to post-retiremant health care henafits is based on the smployee remaining In service up fo retirement age and
the completion of a minlmum sseivice pericd. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the perlod of employment,
Independent gualifled actuaries carry out valuations of thesa obligations. The municipality also provides a gratuity and housing
subsldy on ratirement to certain employess. An annual charge to income Is made to cover both these liabilities.

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-tarm emplovee henefits is the net total of the following amounts:
*  the present value of the defined baneflt obligation at the reporting date;
«  minus the falr value at the reporting date of plan assets {If any) out of which the cbligations are o be settled directly,

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except fo the extent that another
Standard reguires or permits thelr Inclusion in the cost of an asset
¢ gurrent service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on ahy plan assets and on any relmbursement right recognised as an gsset;
actuarlal gains and losses, which shall all ba recognised Immediately;
past setvice cost, which shall all be recognised Immediately; and

the effect of any curiallments or settlemgpds AU DITOR G NERAL
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1.14 Employee benefiis (contlnued)

Termination heneflts

The entity reccgnises termination beneflts as a liability and an expense when the entlty Is demanstrably committed o slther:
*  terminate the employment of an employee or group of smployees before the normal retirement date; or
¢« provide termination benefils as a result of an offer made in order o encourags voluntary redundancy.

The entlty ls demonstrably committad to a termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan for the tertination and is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detalled plan includes [as a minlmum]:

e the logation, functlon, and approximate number of amployses whose services are to be terminated;

«  the termination benefits for each Job classlfleation or function; and

. the time at which the plan will be implemented.

Implameantation begins as scon as possible and the perod of fime to complefe Implementation Is such that matetlal changes to
the plan are not likely.

Whare termlnation benefits fall due more than 12 months afier the reparting date, they are discounted using an appropriate
dlscount rate. The rale used {o discount the benefit reflects the ime value of money. The currency and ferm of the financial
instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated iarm of the benefit,

In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of fermination benefits shall be based on
the number of employeas expected to accept the offer.

1,18 Provislons and Contingencles

Provisions are recognised when:
*  ths municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past avent;
» It Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benafits or service potential will be required to
soitle the obligation; and '
*  argliabie estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the sxpenditure expacted to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is materlal, the amount of a provision s the present value of the expenditures
expecied to he regulred to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valie of money and the risks specific to
the llability.

Where some or all of the expenditure raquired to setle a proviston 1s expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
refmbursement Is recegnised whan, and only when, it Is virtually certaln that reimbursament will be recelved if the munlcipality
settles the obllgation. The relmbursement is treated as a separate assel. The amount recognised for the reimbursemant does
not exceed the amount of the provisian.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current bast estimate. Provisions are reversad if if is
no lohger prebeble that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
ohligation. :

Whete discounting is used, the carrylng amount of a provision Inoreases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expensa.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

If an entity has & contract that Is onerous, the present abligation {net of recoverles) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision,
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1.18 Previslons and Contingancles {continuad)

No obligation atises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation municipality Is committed to the sale

or transfer, that |z, thare ls a binding arrangement.

After their inltiai recognition contingent liabilifes recognised In entity combinaiions that are recognlsed separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

¢ the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

o the amount inltlally recaognized less cumulative amorilsation,

Contingent assets and contingent Habllitles are not recognised. Contingencles are discloasd In nota 41.

A financlal guarantee contract is & contract that requires the Issuer to make specified paymeants to reimburse the holder for a
logs it Incurs because a specified debtor falls to make payment when due in accordance with the orlginal or modifled terms of a
debt Instrument,

Loan commitment’is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specifled terms and conditions,

The munlcipality recognises a grovision for financtal guarantees and loan commlitments when If Is probable that an ocutflow of
resources ambodying economle benefits and service potential will be raquired te settle the obligatlon and a refiable estimate of
the obligation can be mades,

Determining whether an cutflow of resources is probabla In relation to financlal guarantsaes requlres Judgement. Indicatlens that
an cutflow of resources may be probable are:
»  financial difficulty of the debtor;
s defaults or delinguaencies in inferest and capltal repayments by the debtor;
s breaches of the terms of the debt Instrument that result In it being payable earller than the agreed lerm and the
abllity of the dabtor to settls its obligation on the amended terms; and
*+  adedline In prevailing economic clreumstances (e.g. high interest rates, Inflation and unemployment) fhat impact on
the ability of entities to repay thelr obligations,

Where a fos Is recelvad by the municipality for Issuing a financlal guarantee and/or where m fee Is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the ameount required to settle the obligation at reporting date.
Where a fee is chatged and the munioipaiity considers that an outflow of economic resources Is probable, an munlcipality
recognises the obligation at the higher of:
+ the amount determined using In the Standard of GRAP on Provislons, Contingent Lisbilities and Gontingent Assets:
and
+  the amount of the fes Initfally recoghised less, whare appropriate, cumulaflve amortisation recegnised In accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Exchange Transactions.

1.16 Commitments

ltams are classifiad as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactlons thai will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Dsclosuras are required in reapect of unracognised contractual commitments,

Commitments for which disclosure ls necessary to achiave a {alr presentation should be distlosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criterta are met:
*  Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for exampla, contracta for computer or
building malntenance services); and
*  Contracts should relate to something other than the rouline, steady, slate business of the entity — therefore salary
commitmenis relating to employmeant confracts or soclal securlty benefit commitments are excludad.
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1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions SR J

Revenus is the gross inflow of economic benefits or sarvice potential during the reporting perlod when those Inflows result in an
increasa In net agsets, other than Increases relatling to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction Is one inwhich the municlpallty recelves assets or sewvices, or has liabilites extinguished, and divectly
glves approximately equal value (primarily In the farm of goods, services or uase of assets) to the other party In exchange.

Falr velue Is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liablllty settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Maasurement
Revenue [s measured at the falr value of the consideration recelved or recelvable, net of trade discounts and volume rebatas,

The amount of revenue arlsing on a transaction which s statutory (noh-contractual) in nature is usually measurad by reference
to tha ralevant legislation, regulation or similar means. The fee structure, tariffs or calculation basis speclfied in leglslation,
regulation or similar means is used to determina the amount of revenue that should be recognised. This amount represents the
falr value, on Iniflal measuremeant, of the consideration recsived or receivable for revenue that arises from a statutory (non-
contractual} arrangement (ses the accounting polley on Statutory Recelvakles),

Sale of goods

Revenua from the sale of goods is recognlsed when all the following conditions have been satisfled:

*  the municipaiity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownershlp of the goods;

» - the municipality retains nsither continuing managerial involvement to the degree ususlly assoclated with ]
awnership nor effective control aver the goods sold; i

5 the amount of revenue gan he measured raliably;

» it Is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow fo the
municipallty; and

+  the costs incurred ot t¢ be Incurred In respect of the transaction can be maasured raliably,

Rendering of services

Whan the outcome of a traneaction Involving the rendering of services can be estimated refiably, revenue assoclated with
the transaction Is resoghnised by reference to the stage of completion of the fransactlon at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transactlon can be esiimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfled:

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; i

+ | Is probable that the economlc benefits or service potentlal associated with the transaction will flow to the i

municipality;
= the stage of completion of the fransaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
* the costs incurred for the fransaction and the costs to complate the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indalerminate number of acts over a specifiad fime frame, revenue Is recognised oh a
straight-line basis over the specified fimz frame unless there is evidence that some ofher method better represents the stage of
completion. When a speclfls act Is mueh more significant than any other acis, the racognition of revenus is postponed until the
slgnificant act Is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated raliably, revenue is recognised !
only to the extant of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. j

Service revenue is recognised by refarence io the stage of compleiion of tha transaction at the reporiing date. Stage of
completion is determined by services performed to date as a perceniage of fotal services to be parfarmed.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arlsing fram the use by others of entily assets yislding Interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
racognised whan: ;
* It is probsble that tha aconomic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the :
municipality, and
»+  The amaunt of the revenue can be measursd reliably.
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1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions {contlnued)

Interast Is recognised using the effective interest rate method for financlal Instratfidnis, and using the nominal Interest rate
method for statutoty receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions Is
classified baged on the naturs of the underlying transaction.

Rovaltles are retognlasd as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends or similar distributlons are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the municipality's right to recelve payment has baen
established.

Service fees included In the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the perlod dutlng which the service Is
perfarmed.

1.18 Ravenue from non-exchange trangactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transacticns. In a non-exchange transaction, a munlcipallty
either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or glves value to
another munleipality without directly recelving approximately equal value In exchange.

Recognition

An inflow of resaurces ftom a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recagnised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability Is also recognised In respect of the same inflow.

As the municipallty satisfies & present obligation recognised as a llabilily In raspect of an Inflow of resources from & non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, It reduces the carrylng amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from & non-gxchange transactlon is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municlipallty recognises an asset, it also racognises revenue equivalent
to tha amount of the asset measured at its falr value as at the date of acqulsition, unless It is also required o recognise a
liability. Where a llabliity s raquired & be recognised It will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required 1o seitle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of ihe increase In net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When &
labllity Is subsequently reduced, because the taxable svent accurs or a gondition is satisfled, the amount of the reduction in the
llability is recognised as revehus.

Receivables that arise from statutory (non-contractual) arrangements are Initfally meastired fh accordanca with this accounting
policy, as well as the accouniing policy on Statutory Recelvabies. The entity applies the accounfing policy on Statukery
Receivables for the subsaquent measurement, derecognition, presantation and disclosure of statutory raceivables.

Intarest is recognised using the effective interest rate method for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
method for statutory recelvables. Interest [evied on transaclions arising from exchange or nen-exchange fransactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

1.19 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorlsed expandiiure means:
. overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of & main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.
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1.19 Unauthorisad expenditure {continusd) /’J

All expandlture relaiing to unauthorlsed expenditure Is recognised as an expense In the statement of financlal performance In
the year that the expanditure was ihcurred, The expenditure is classifled In accordence with the natura of the expense and
where recoverad, It 1s subsequently accounted for as revenue In the statement of financlal parformance.

Unauthorised expenditure Is accounted for In line with all relating requirements, including, but not iimited to, ruling Leglslation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Clreulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines eto (as applisable).

1.20 Fruitiess and wasteful expendifure

Fruitiess expenditure means expendiiure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exerclesd,

All expenditura relating to fruitless and waeteful expenditure Is recognised as an expense in the statement of financlal
performance in tha year that the expanditure was incurred. The expendlture |s classiflad In accordance with the nature of the
expense and where recovered. It is subsequenily accounted for as revenue In the statement of financlal performance.

Frultless and wasteful expendifure is accountad for in line with all relating requirements, including, but not limited te, ruling
Legislation, Regulations, Frameworks, Cirauiars, Instruction Nates, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc {as applicable).

1.21 biragular expendliure

Irregular expenditure is definad in section 1 of the MFMA as follows:

Irregular expenditure ¥, In relation to a munleipallty or munlclpal entlity, means

&) expendlture Incurred by a municpality or municlpal entity In contravantion of, or that ls not In accordanca with, a requirement
of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 170;

b) expenditure Incurred by a municipality or imuniclpal entity In centravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the Munlclpal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned |n tarms of that Aot

¢} expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that Is not In accordance with, a requirement of the Plubiic
Office-Beares Act, 1988 (Act No,20 of 1998);0r

) expenditure neurred by a municipallty or municlpal entlly In contravention of, or that Is not In accordance with, a requirement
of the supply chaln management policy of the municipailty or enfity or any of the munclpallty's by-laws glving effect to such
policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or by-law, but excludes ependiture by a municipality which
falls within the definition of "unauthorlsed expendiiure”.

In this saniext 'expenditure’ refers to any use of municipal funds that is in contravention of the following legislation:

Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 58 of 2003, and its regulations

Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000, and its regulations

Public Office Bearers Act, Act 20 of 1988, and its regulations; and

Tha municipatity's supply chaln management pollcy, and any by-laws giving effact to that policy.

V V¥ Y

Natlonal Treasury practice hote ha. 4 of 2008/2009 which was Issued lh terms of sections 78(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA raquires
the followlng (effactive from 1 Aprit Z008).

Irregular expendiiure. that was Incurred and Identified durlng the cument financial and which was condoned before year end
andfor before finalisation of the financial statements must afso be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an Instance, no further actlon is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financlal statements.

Irregular expendiiure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awalted at year end and must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action Is required with the exceplion
of updaiing the note to the financial statements.

Where irregutar expenditure was incurred in the previaus financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year,
the reglster and the disclosure note to the financlal statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
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1.21 Irragular expenditurs {continued)

Irregular expendifure thet was Incurred and identifled during the current flnancia) year and which was not condoned by the
Natlonal Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the Ir@JUMEF expendiure register. If linbility for the
irregular expenditure can ba aftrlbuted to a person, a debt account must be ereated If such a person s llable In law. Immedlats
steps must thareafler be taken to recover the amount from the person concered. If recovery Is not possible, the accounting
offfeer or accounting authorlty may wilte off the amount as debt Impalrment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The Irragular expenditure registsr must also be updated accordingly. If the Irregular expenditure has not
baen condoned and no person ls flable In law, the expanditure related thereto must remaln against the relevant
programme/expendlture ltem, be disclosed &s such In the note to the financlal statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expendifure reglater.

Irregular expendliure ls expendliure that Is contrary to the Munlcipal Finance Management Act {Act No.58 of 2003), the
Municlpal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000}, and the Public Office Bearers Aot (Act No. 20 of 1988) or is In contravention of the
economic entity's supply chaln management palicy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure Is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsaquently
accounted for as revenue In the Statement of Financlal Petformance

Irragutar Expenditure is disclosed It tarma of Clrcular 88 from Natfonal Treasury.

1.22 Segment information

A segment 1s an activily of an enfity:
*  that generates economic bensfits or service potentlal {including economic benefits or service potential relating to
transactions between activities of the same entlty);
*  whose results are regularly reviewed by menagement to make decislons abeut resaurces to be allovated to that
activity and In assessing its perfarmance; and
’ for which separate financial Information Is availabls.

Raportable sagments are the actual segmants which are raported on In the segment report. They are the segments identified
above ¢r alternatively an aggregation of two er more of those segments whera the aggregation criteria are met,

Measurement

The amount of each segment Item reporied is the measure reperted to management for the purposes of making declsions
about allocating resocurces to the segment and assessing its performance. Adjustments and ellminations made In prepating the
entity's financial statemants and allocations of revenues and expenses are included in determining reported segment surplus ar
deflcit only if they are included in the measure of the sagment’s surpius or deficit that is used by management. Similarly, only
those assets and lfabilities that are included in the measures of the segment's assets and segment’s liabilities that are used by
managament are raported for that segment. If amounts are allocated to raported sagment surplus or deficlt, assats or llabllitiss,
those amaounts are allccated on a reasonable basls.

If management uses only one measure of & segment's surplus or deflgii, the segment's assets or the segment's liabilities in
assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources, segment surplus or deflclt, assats and liabilifies are
reported In terms of that measure. If management uses more than one measure of a segment's surplus or deficit, the
segment's assets or the ssgment's liabllifies, the reported measurss are those that managemant belloves are determined In
accordance wlth the measurement principles most consistent with those used In measuring the correspending amounts in the
antity’s financial statemenis.

The geographical information is not available to be abls to report segments per area.
1.23 Budget information

Municlipalifies are typlically subject io budgstary limits In the form of appropriations or budget authorlsations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, approptiation or similar.

General purpose financlal reporting by munlcipality shalf provide information on whether resources were obfained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget. The spproved budget is prepared on an accrual basls and presented by
programmes linked to performence ouicome objectives. The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2022/07/01 to
2023/08/30.

45




~UDITOR (.. NERAL
ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY . -

(Registration number DC44) SQUTH AFRICA
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies A7 DEC 2023

1.23 Budget Information (continued)

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basls of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been Included In the Statement of compatison of budget and actual amounts,

Comparative information Is not required.
1.24 Related parties

Arelated party Is a person or an entity with the abllity to control or jointly control the other party, or exerciss significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that Is sublect to comman control, or Jolnt contral.

Conirol is the power to govern the financlal and operating pollcles of an entity so as to obialn beneflis from its activities,

Joint control is the agread sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and axlsts only when the strategle
financial and operating declslons relating fo the activity raquire the unanimous consent of tha partiss sharing control (the
veniursrs).

Related party transaction ls & transfer of rescurces, services or obligations beiween the reporting entity and a related party,
regardlass of whether a price (s charged,

Slgnifleant influsnce is the power to participate In the financial and operating policy decisions af an entity, bul is not control over
those pallcles,

Management are those persons responsible for plannihg, directing and controlling the actlivities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the munlicipality In accordance with legislation, in instances where they are requlred o
perform such functlons.

Close members of the famlly of & person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be Influenced by that
person in their dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions If that transaction occurs within
hormal supplier and/or cllent/recipient relationships on terims and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it Is
reasohable to expect the munleipailty to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same clrcumstances
and terms and conditlens are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting éntity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality i& exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipalily discloses narrative
Information #bout the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity's financlal
statements to understand the elfest of related party transactions on Its annuat financlal statements.

Related parties and related party transactions

Individuals as well as thelr close family members, and/or enflities are related parties if one party has the abllity, directly or
Indirectly, to control or jointly conirol the other party ar exercise significant influence over the other party in making flnancial
and/or opaerating decisions. Managament is regarded as a related party and compilses the Councliors, Executive Mayor,
Mayoral Cominittee members, Municipal Manager, Executive Directors and all other managers reporiing directly to the
Municlpal Manhager or as deslgnated by the Municipal Manager.

1.25 Events after reporting date

Events after reperting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that ocour between the reporting date and the
date when the financlal statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identifled:
*»  those that provide evidenca of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
«  those that are indicative of condltions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporling
daie).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognisad in the financial statemenis to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event ocourred.
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1,25 Events after reporting date {confinued)

The munlelpallty will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financlal effect or & statement that such estimate
cannot ba made In respact of all material non-adjusting evenis, where hon-disclosure cattld Influence the economie decisions '
of users taken on the basls of the financlal statements,

Events after the reporiing date that are classifled as adjusting events have been accounted for in the Annual Financlal
Statements. The events sfter the reporting dete that are classlfiied as non-ad|usting events affer the repotting date have been
disclosed in the notes to the Annugl Financial Statements,
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Flgures In Rand 2023 2022

2.  Mew standards and Inferprefations
21 Standerds and inferpretations Issued, but not yet effactive

The munlclpallty hag not applied the following standards and Interpretations, which have besn published and are
mandatory for the municlpality's accounting perlods beginning on or after 01 July 2023 or later perlods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Etfective date: Expected npact:
Years beginning on or
' after

] GRAP 26 (as revisad): Employee Benefits - 01 April 2023 Unllksly there will be a
matetial Impact

*  IGRAP 7 {(as revised): Limit on deflned bensfit asset, 01 Aprll 2023 Unlikely there will be a
minintum fundlng requiremeants and thelr interaction material Impact

J GRAP 104 (as revised): Flnancial Instruments 01 Aptll 2025 Unllkely there will be a
materlal impact

*  IGRAP 21! The Effect of Past Daclslons on Materiality 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
matstlat Impact

. GRAP 2020: Improvements to the standards of GRAP 2020 01 Aprll 2023 Unllkely there will be a
. material impact

¢ GRAP 1 (amendad): Pressntation of Financial Statements 01 April 2023 Unllkely there will be a

materlal Impact
3.  Segment Information
General information
Identification of segments
The municipality Is organised and operates in threé key funotional segments (or business areas). The segments were
organised around the fype of sarvice delivered and the target market. Management uses these samae segments for
determining strateglc objectives. Segments were aggragated for reperting purposes.
Information reported about these segments s used by management as a basls for evaluating the segments’
performances and for making decislons about the alloeation of resources. Revanue and expenditure relating to these
business are allocatedat a transactional level. Costs relating to governance and administration of the municlpality are
not allocated to these business areas.
The three key business areas comprise of:

Community and public safety which Includss community and social services, sport and recreation, public safsty, health
and housing setvices.

Econotnic and environmental services which include planning and development, road transport and etwvironmental
protection

Trading services which Includes energy sources, water management and waste water managemant

Tha grouping of these segments is consistent with the functional classifications of governement activitles which
conslders the nature of the service, the beneficiaries of such services and the fees charged for the services rendered (if

any).

AUDITOR GANERAL
SOUTH AFRICA
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Figures in Rand

3. Scgment information (continued)

Segment surplus or deficif, assets and liabilities

2023
[ Commurtity Econcmic Water and Other Total
0 o Services Environmental Sanitation @ Segmenis &
= O mu.. Affairs Admin

Revenue < =3 m .

Revenue from non-exchange fransactions ‘= T 3 16 626 000 - G538 DM17 587 703654 345 1 278 297 932
Revenue from exchange fransactions i - - 25298157 - 25288157
Acturial gains <o - - - 1373754 1373754
Agency Services = 3% - - - 221196 221196
Rental of facifities and Equipment =2 Im - - - 14 971 14 971
Other Income . 3 W 1 065 610 - 7 487 709 431242 8985261
Total segment revenue - ﬁ P~ 17 691 610 - 90803453 705696208 1314181271
Interest revenue r\\lll\l 83 345 961
Eniity's revenue 1397 537 232
Expenditure

Saiaries and wages 38 960 702 12 046 260 099508078 138772881 289287928
Remuneration of Councillors - - - 11306562 11306562
Legzal Costs - - - 7271078 7271078
Depreciation - - 85592785 112399858 98992643
Lease rentals from Operating Leass - - - 1616 800 1616 800
Debt impairment - - 13404 022 - 13 404 022
Bulk Purchases . - - 13 3124038 - 13 312 408
Contracted Services 2465540 30642030 79407382 77080903 189595835
Transfers znd Subsidies 14 304 885 25 086 856 - 584 778 40 976 629
General Expenses 5766 807 2629757 26342963 116571429 151310956
Total segment expenditure 61 497 951 71405003 318567618 365604289 817074861
Toial segmentai surplus/{deficit} {43 306 341) (71405003} 272235835 340091219 427116410




ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DC44}
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes fo the >:=:m._ Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

Community Economic Water and Oiher Total
Services Environmental Sanitation Segments &
Affairs Admin

3. Segment information {confinued}
Tolal revenue reconciling termns . 83 345 961
Assets
Segment assets ‘ 131100 Q877228 53499386 913 87 034 390 5447 038 631
Long term investment . . - - - 10 838 087 10 838 037
Investrment in controlled entities 100 k - - - 100
Total segment assets . 131 200 9877228 53499963 97 872477 5457 877 818

, S 5 457 877 813

Total assets as per Statement of financial Position

Liabilities : '
Segment liabilities /,; - - - 216555257 216 555257
Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position , mu =1 216 555 257
F= n et -
Cashflows ~ g m Other Total’
Ca . . jUJ o e Segmenis
shilow from operating acfivities oS > 625436705 625436 705
Cashilow frem investing activities e o 8 (482 183 543) (482 183 543)
B s
2622 =< I
QL
> it Community Eccnomic Water and Other Total
and Public  Envronmental  Sanitation Segments &
Safety Affairs Admin
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Figures in Rand

3. Segment information {continued}
Revenue

Beveanue from exchange transaciions - - 26422862 - 265422362
Revenue from non-exchange fransactions - 12097 831 711208085 620385858 1352693814
Agency Services - - - 263 388 263 388
Rental of fadiiiiles and Equipment - - - 1761 1761
Qther Income 826 561 - 3268 385 179 837 4 274 783
Actuartal gains ] - - - 1657 993 1657 993
Totad segment revenue n\wm W 826 561 12097 831 740897332 651492 877 1385 314 601
Interest revenue by = O 43 411 288
Entity's revenue N g m 1428 725 889
M e B

Expenditure @

Salaries and wages s mm 33332265 8745401 78169851 151345896 271583413
Remuneration of councillors e S 5 m - - -~ 10489130 10483130
Litigation expenditure ....n..m = - - - 7 268 253 7 268 253
Depreciaijon = h-3 1804 354 - 81 482 956 8622727 102910037
Amortisation = - - - 492 017 492 017
Interast expense - - - 4086 048 406 048
Lease rentals on aperating lease 19 750 - - 1482292 1502 D42
Debf impalmmert - - - 6 4389 668 6 489 668
Bulk purchases - - 10300279 - 10300279
Transfers and subsidies - 13010818 - - 180M108&18
Loss on disposal - - - 641 947 841 947
General expenses 3 753 842 10 004 S05 12 505 631 92712124 123976272
Confracied services 299642 28006472 6834932068 2 S53376485 150175895
Total segment expenditure 44 209 953 B4 767198 260952013 334326652 704265320
Total segmentai surplus/{deficit) 881 048 781
Total revenus recoriciling ifems 43 411 288
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DC44)

Annual Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures In Rand 2023 2022

4, Inventories

C‘-WNERAL .
Consumables stores A UD‘TOR - ECA 11 183 466 8 969 308
Water gOUTH AFR 3644310 9696060
| oot 2073 \ 14827776 19 665 366
Do

Water losses in cuble meters

167 861 197 892
5 690 285 1893811
(5140871} (1344 197)

Opening balance {volumes}
Produced (volumes)
Less water sales (volumes)

Less Water Stock Closing balance {volumes) (203 886) (197 661}
Water Losses 543 288 549 745
Cost of producing one cuble meter . ‘ 18 49
Water logs In Rands : Q779184 26 937 506

Water loss as parcantage of produced (%) - 10 29

- -

The water losses are as a result of leakages on the network system, evaporation as well as fllegal connections.
5. Recelvables from noh-exchange transactions

Staff Debtors : 392 830 215 183
Other Dabtors ' 130 872 9 407 867

532702 9 623 050

The other dibtors are made up of the following

Prapaid Suppliers - 268 204
Insuranca Clalm - 688 995
Legal Costs - Recavered - 180 054
Legal Cust - Alfred Nzo Development Agency 97 922 -
Admin charges - Utllities World . 41 950 -
DWS . - - 8 270 526

139 872 9 407 869
Financlal asset recelvables included In receivables from non-sxchange transactions 632702 1352 526
abovae

Statutory recelvables general Information

Transaction(s) arising from statute

Included in the receivables from non-exchange for the period ended 30 June 2022, Is an amount of R 8 27¢ 524, which
was a statutory receivable. The amount was for claims made to the Department of Water and Sanitation, through
Regional Bulk [nfrastructure Grant(RBIG) and at 30 Juna 2022 was silfl outstanding. RBIG is a schedule 6B grant and
claims are only made once work Is done. Receivables from non-exchanga are disclosed in note 50,

Recoivables fiom non-exchange transactlons pledged as security

There were no receivables from nor-exchange that were pledged as security.
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
(Reglstratlon number DC44}
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand 2023 2022
6. Rscelvables from Exchange Transactions
Gross Balances
Water 150 634 739 128 858 756
Sewatage 24 866 225 21515365
{Other 1 334 107 1392 206
176 735071 151764 417
l.ass: Allowance for Impalrment
Water (92 600 953) (B1 908 277)
Sewerage (21 082 891) (18 339 053)
Other (740 430) (763 923)
{114 424 274) {101 009 253)
Net Balancs
Watar 67 833786 46950 479
Sewerage 3783334 3176 312
Other 593 677 628 373
. 62 310 797 50 755 164
Water
Current {0 -30 days) 2 916 359 2924 298
31 - 80 days 2 985 491 2138 955
61 - 90 days 2 650 591 2061672
91 - 120 days 2 435 754 1792 868
» 121 days 139 542 544 -
160 534 739 8917 890
Sewerage
Current (0 -30 days) 403 470 424 565
31 - 60 days 402 241 334 820
61 - 80 days 392 341 324 779
91 - 120 days — 386 929 320706
121 - 365 days AUDITOR GENERAL 23281244 20110495
SOUTE AERICA 24 606 225 21 515 365
07 DEC 2023
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
(Reglstration number RC44)
Annual Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand 2023 2022

6. Receivables from Exchange Transactions {continued)

Sundry
>120 days 1334 107 1392 207

1334 107 1392 297

Summary of debtors by classification

Consumars
0-30 days 1093 039 074 133
31- 60 days 1080138 876 295
61-90 days 1133 080 881 576
91-120 days 1125 350 823776
»120 days 83415228 85845018
Subtotal 07 B48 815 88 400 798
Less impairment allowance [ et {87 4567 819) (78 942 406)
i DITORGENERAL [ 10388996 10 458 392
Industrlal bUU1HAFRICA
ndustrla
- - 673 300 768 963
gﬁgc? 3ﬁ33 b7 QEC 2023 512 772 477 661
6180 days : 473 063 483 398
91-120 days 525 310 446 347
>120 days 34 365 541 30077 804
Subtotal o 36 560 076 33 144 673 .
Less impairment allowance {8906 512) (7 746 715}
27 643 564 25307 558
Ghurches
0-30 days 41 331 24 146
31-60 days 52 242 15 135
61-90 days Lo 62 343 15792
B1-120 days L : 54 143 15 847
> 120 days : : 2665773 2262 961
Subtotal ] 2865832 2323880
Less impairment allowance (217 490) (2147 BEZ)

2 648 342 176 328

National and Provincial Governments

0-30 days 1512080 1581622
31-80 days 17465680 1102684
61-90 days 1384466 1005186
91-120 days 1117 879 B27 701
>120 days 32377240 20978226
Subtotal 38138234 25505419
Less impairment allowance (17 102 (22) (11 408 656}

21036212 14096 763

Othear- sundries _
>120 days 1834107 1392207

Bubtotal 1334107 1302207
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DC44)

Annugl Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 ' 2022

6. Recelvables fromn Exchange Transactions (continued)

Less impairment allowance (740430} (763 922)
593 677 628 375

TOTAL

Currant (0 =30 days) AUDITOR GENERAL 3 307 682 2 348 BE3

31 - 60 days 3471078 2473775

G190 days SQU FH AFRICA 3120 314 2 386 451

91 - 120 days 2814 694 2113671

121~ 365 days

4.7 DEC 2023

163 822 303 141 441 658

176 735071 151 764 418

Reconclliation of allowance for Impalriment
Balance at baginning of the year
Contributions to allowance

(101 009 253) (94 507 585)
(13415021) (6501 668)

{114 424 274) (101 009 253)

7.  Cash and eash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents conslst of:

Bank balances (Primary Account}
Short-tarm depacslts

103 666 325 6 808 358
1008 650 064 960 163 868

1110 225 379 D66 972 2116

The municipailty had ths following bank agcounts _

Account number / description

Bank statement balances
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Cash bool balances

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Main Ascount- Current Acount 135814903 12976230 106 380422 103 566 323 6808 359 83631239
H62024932974

ANDM Main Call Account 394732048 222870871 328234743 1394732048 222870871 328234743
#624774364553

DBSA- Loan Account # 162549079 118977518 79674807 162bh42979 114302038 79674 807
6245228732

Rural Road Asset Management 40 000 4716 220 2 364 712 40000 4716 220 2364712
#62454657720

Reglonal Bulk Account # 54 051 1811937 6 547 358 54 951 1811937 6 547 358
62027459371

EPWP Account #62058637110 61518 17 890 411 757 61 617 17 890 411 757
FMG Account # 62033034597 5152 3315 715 180 5152 3315 715 180
WS8IG Account # §2033034448 309389 40367 988 3 768 668 300382 40367988° 3765668
Energy & Efficiency Account # 553 323 5 281 1780 382 5E3 323 5281 1780382
62027455808

Salaries and Allowances 414918315 170958541 185500687 414918315 170 268 6541 185 500 697
Account #820266448855 '
ISDG Account #62093560136 18 786 11801 2 3865 856 18 786 11 801 2 385 856
MIG Agcount #62065368328 974074 B6636488 68 375 570 074074 72311968 68375 57¢
Monay cn call 324441518 27846573 11852540 32441518 27848573 11852 540
Standard Bank - 101643 8386 - - 101 643 836 -
Standard Banlk 2 - 203287671 - - 203287671 -
Peatty cash - - - - 7 928 -
Total 1142474046 973132160 797 992701 1110225375 966972217 7T75143518
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ALFRED NZQ DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Rsyistration number DC44)
Annual Financlal Staterents for tha year anded 30 Juns 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Flgures in Rand . 2023 2022

8. VAT receivable

VAT 26061 627 31006 366

Vat Recelvable is a statuiory recelvable and dlsc;losed in the note far stattdory recslvables, note 60.
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DC44)
Annual Financial Statarnents for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2023 2022

11. Intergsts In other antities

Investments in controlled entltfies

Neme Jurisdiction Determination % % Carrying Carrylng
of ownarship ownership ownershlp amount 2023  amount 2022
Interest interest  Interest
2023 2022
Alfred Nzo Development Agency  South Africa 100.00 % 100,00 % 100 100
100 100
100 100

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

A7 DEC 2023
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
{Reglstratlon number DC44)
Annual Financlel Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures In Rand 2023 2022
12. Heritage assots (continued)
Reconcillatlon of hetltage assefs 2023
QOpening " Total
balance
Histarical monumants 131 100 131 100
Reconclliatlon of herltage assets 2022
Opening Total
balance
Historleal ronuments 131 100 131 100
13. Staff loans
Staff Loans Co . 1041 861 1052 861
1041 861 1052 861
Allowance for doubiful debts (1041 881) (1062 861)

The Munlcipality praviously, In 2002, assisted some municlpal officlals with advances to buy mator vehicles through
provislon of car loans. Some of these offlciale left the municipality and some passed on, Means of tracing these
employees were frultiess and the recoverablilly of the sald amount Is doubtiul s a result. The loans have been fully

Impaired. The munipality does not offer loans to staff members anymore.

AUDITOR GENERAL |

14. Investments SOUTH AFH;CA
Beslgnated at amortised cost -
Nedbank long term investment A7 DEC 2023 10838087 10 134 587
Non-current assots
Designated at amortised cost e 10 838 087 10 134 687
Non-turrent assets 10 838 (87 10 134 587
Account Cashbock Cashbook Bank Bank

20238 2022 statement 2023statement 2022
Mebank Account 10 838 987 10 134 587 40 838 087 10 134 587 -

The investment is a fixed deposit that matures on 31 March 2025. The investment has & fixed interest rate of 14.07%

15. Operating lease fiability (Accrual}

Current lizbilities

(226 024)

(223 529)
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

(Registratlon number DC44)

Annual Flnancial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand 2023 2022

16, Payahies from exchange transactions

Trads payables 121990484 19428 184

Retentions 71 024 081 73 994 116

Acoruals 88 402 431 137 865 393

Acerusd bonus 6 975 646 5 661 460

Other Credlitors o 762 9380

Accrued salarles 284 118 1489 M7

Third party payments 176 391 906 744
158 081 913 239 353 274

Acciuals and trade payables are normal business creditors, the distinction between the two Is that trade payables are
craditors where invoives were regelved before year end and Accruals Invoices were recaived after year end but for

services or goads racslved before year end.

17, Employee henefit oblipations

Long Service Awards

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Nonh-current liabllities _ (10 855 000) (10 080 00D)
Current fiabilittes 07 DEC 7013 ‘ (1480000) (2002 000)
' {12 435 000) {12 082 6OD)

Long Servige Awards

A

The municipality operates an unfunded defin

ad plan for all its employeas. Under the plan, a long service award is

payahle after flve years of contlnuous service and avery five years thereafter to employees. The provision is an estimate
of the long setvice based on historical staff furnover. No other long service benefits are provided to employees, These
provisions are made to enable the munlcipallty t'be i a posmon to fulfill its known |egal obligations whan they become

due and payable.

The most recent actuarlal valuatlons of plan assets and the present value of the defined bensfit obligation were carried
out at 30 June 2023 by Mr G. Welss Fellow of the Actuarial Sodety of South Afrlea. The presant value of the dafined
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past sarvice cost, were measured using the Projected Unit

Credlt Method.

At the end of the year 402, (2022: 495) employees were aligible for long service awards

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Cpening balance 12082000 12202 000

Current setvice costs 1 448 000 1 507 000

Interest cost 1235 000 1028 000

Benefits psld {956 246) (297 O07)
Actuarial galn {1373 753) (18657 983)
Present value of the fund at the end of the year 12 435 001 12 082 000

Net expense racognlsed In the statement of financlal performance

Current service cost 1 448 000 1 807 000

Interest cost 1 235 000 1 328 000

Actuarial (galns) losses (1373753) (1657 993)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financlal performance 1309 247 877 007
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Reglstration number DC44}
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand 2023 2022

17. Employee beneflt obligations (continued)

Calculation of actuarlal galns and losses

Actuarial (gains) losses — Obligation {1373753) (1657 993)
Koy assumpffons used

Assumptlons used at tha reporting date:

Discount rates used 11.38 % 11.00 %
Cost Inflation rate ' 6.62 % 7.00 %
Net effect discount rate 4.47 % 4,00 %
Expected Retlrement Age - Females 52.00 % 62,00 %
Expected Retirement Age - Males 62,00 % 62,00 %

18. Unspent conditlonal grants and recelpts
Unspant condltional grants and receipts comprises of;

Lnspent conditional grants and receipts
Water 8Bervises Infrastruciure Grant : 14 106 640

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financlal statements and an Indication of ather
forms of government assistance from which the munleipality has directly benefited. Unfulfilled condltions and other
contingencles altaching to government assistance that has been recoghised. During the financlal year, the funding from

WSIG was not fully spent and a roll ovar application has been submitted to Natlonal Treasury.

See nole 28 for reconclliation of grants from National/Provinclal Govarnment. These funds are investsd in a ring-fenced

Investmeant unfil utlfised.

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AERIcA

A7 DEC 2073
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Registration number DC44)

Annual Flnancfal Statements for the ysar ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
19. Provislons
Reconciliation of Provisions « 2023
Openlhg Additions Taotal
Balanca
Litlgations 3603 381 {340) 3 903 041
Leave Provision 22 810 108 6447 044 28 057 150
26 513 437 6446704 32 960 191
Reconcliiation of Provisions - 2022
Opening Addiflons Revarsed Total
. Balance during the year
Litlgatlons 1 200 000 2703 381 - 3 903 331
Leave Provision 25 137 671 - (2627 565) 22610106
26 337 671 2703 381 (2 527 565) 26 513 487

Litigations Provision

On the 26th of June 2019, the High court of South Africa, Mihatha, delievered a judgement against the municipality on a
case between the municlpality and Ms Z. Mowebi. The two partles have not flnallsed the amount of the payout. The
estimate was revised [n the previous financial year.

Leave Provision

Staff leave acorue to siaff of the municipality on an annual basls, subject fo certein conditlons. The provision is an

estimate of the amount due at the reporting date.

20. Payables from non exchangs transactions

These are payments made by customers in advance of consumption,

Advance payments by customers

2094 850

3 006 207

21. Revénue

Setvice charges

Rental o7 facilities and equipment
Agency services

Other income

Actuarlel GGalns

Interest received from Investment
Gavamment grants & subsldies

- 7 DEC 7023

S UDITOR GENERAL |
SOUTH AFRICA

26298167 26 422 862
14 971 1761

221 196 263 388

8 985 261 4274 783
1373 754 1 657 993
833460681 43411288

1278297 932 1 352 693 814

1397 537 232 1428 725 B89
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Flgures in Rand . 2023 2022

21. Revenus (contfnued)

The amount Included in revenus arising from exchanges of goods or sarvices

ara as follows:

Service charges 25208 167 26 422 862

Rental of facilities and aquipment -14 971 1761

Agency services 221 196 263 388

Other Ihcome 8985 261 4274 783

Acturial gains 1373754 1657 983

Interest teceived from Investment 83 345 981 43 411 288
119 238 300 76 032 075

The amount included In revenue arising from nen-exchange transactions is as
follows: '

Taxatlon revenus

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 1 278 207 932

1352 693 814

22, Service charges

Sale of walsr 21851878 22893232

Sewetage and sanitation charges 3 446 279 3 5268 630
25298157 26 422 862

23. Rental of facilities and egulpment

Pramises

Premises : 14 971 1761

24, Agency services :

Commisstan earhad it‘{D’TQR CENE 41 221 196 263 388

SUTH

25. Qther income AFR ICA

Sundry Income 1018 750 785 900

Insurance Income 400 000 138 535

Ratentions forfeited 7 4B7 709 3 268 385

Fire lavy 49 860 40 861

Clearance feas 31842 41 302

e $ 935 261 4 274783

28. Interest Income

Interest Income

Short term Investments 69 638 317 33 657 704

Debtors fair valus adjustment 13 706 644 9753 584
83 345901 43 411 288
83 345 961 43 411 288

The Nedbank investment is a fixed depoéit that matures on the 31st of March 2025, Interest rate is fixed at 14.07%.
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27. Transfer and subsldles

Qther suhsldles

Externai Bursarles 584 778 619 514

Emergency Houslhg 14 304 895 -

Alfred Nzo Development Agency 26086 956 17 301 304
40976629 18010 818
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Flgures in Rand

2022

28. Government granis & subsidies '

Operating grants
Equitable share 686 652 000 818 487 000
Climate change grant - 17 831
Infrastructure sidlls development grant 5 500 000 5 500 000
Bank seta 3 488 815 591 500
Lotal government seta H93 534 494 589
Finance management grant 1 960 000 1 860 000
Emergency housing greant 16 626 000 -
Energy efficiency and demand management grant 2 420 000 4 000 001
Expanded publlc works programme @ 337 000 8 740 000
Rural roads asset management systems grant 3049 996 2 340 000
729 617 345 643 121 021
Capltal grants
Munlelpal infrastracture grant 433122000 487 510012
Water services infrastructure grant 65 B83 359 1456 000 000
Reglonal bulk Infrastructure grant 29 665228 77 0671 881
548 680 587 709 572 793
720817 345 643 121 021
548 680 587 700 572 793

1 278 297 932 1 352 693 814

E¢jtiitable Share

In terms of the Constitutian, this grant Is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indlgent community
membore,

During the year, the municlpality recelved its draw downs as per Natlonal Treasury Indicatives.

Expanded Publlie Works Programrme

Curmrent-year recaipts 9 337 000 9740 000
Conditions met - transfarred fo revenua (2 337 Q00 (2740 000)

EPWP grant is used to incentivise municipalities to expand work creation through the use of labour intensive delivery
methads in the followlng identlfied focus areas, in compliance with EPWP guidelines: road malntenance and
maihtenance of hulldings, low &affic volume roads and tural roads, baste services, infrastructure, Including water and
sewer rsticulatlon, sanitation, pipelines {excluding bulk infrastructure} other economle and sodlal infrastructure, tourism
and cultural industrles, waste management, parks and beautification, sustainable land based livelinoods, social setvices
programmes and community safety programmes,

During the year the municipality recelved its draw downs as per National Treasury Indicatives.
Finance Management Grant

Current-year receipis ' 1850 000 1 850 000
Conditions met - iransfarred to revenue - {1950 000) (1950000)

The Finance Management grant Is allocated to municlpalities to promote and support reforms Iin financial management
by building capacities in municipallies to implement the Finance Management Ak,

During the year, the municipality recelved its draw downs as par National Treasury Intllcatives,
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AUDITOR GENERAL
28. Government grants & subsldies {continued) SQUT H AER {CA

Municlipal Infrastructure Grant

07 DEC 2028

Balance unspent at beginning of year -  B8T732914
Current-year recelpts 433122 000 398 778 000
Conditichs met - transfarred to revenue 433 122 000) (487 510 814)

) - 1 . .

The grant s meant to eradicate baslc municipal infrastrusture backiogs for poer households, micro anterprises and
soctal Institutions servicing poor comimunitles.

Duting the yaear the municipality recelved its draw downs as per National Treasury indlcaflves.
Rural Roads Asset Managemant Systems Grant

Current-year recelpts 3 060 Q00 2 340 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (3 060 Q00) (2 340 000)

The grant ts used to assist district municipalities fo set up road asset management systems and collect road, bridge and
trafflc data on municipal road networks in line with the Road Infrastructure Strategic Framework for South Africa.

During the year, the municipality recelved its draw downs as per National Treasury Indicatives.
Infrastructure Skllls Development Grant

Currant-year receipts 5 500 000 5 50O 000
Condifions met - transferred to révenue {5500 000} {5 500 000Q)

The grant Is used to recrult unemployed graduates Into munidpalities o be tralned and professionally registered as per
the requirements of the relevant statutory counclls within the buitt environment.

Durlng the year the municipality received Its draw downs as per Natlonal Treasury indicatives.

Reglonal Bulk Infrastructure Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year (8 270 526) -
Cutrent-year recelpts : . 37935764 68791 356

Condltions met - transferred to revenus {20 660 228) (77 061 882)
' - (8270 526)

The grant is used to develop new, refurblsh, upgrade and replace ageing bulk water and sanitation infrastructure of
regicnal significance thet connects water and sanitation infrastructure that connects water resources to infrastructure
serving extensive areas across municipal boundaries or large bulk infrastructure serving numerous communities over a
large area within a municipality.

To implement bulk infrastructure with a potentlal of addressing water conservation and water demand management
(WC/WDM) projects to facilitate and contribute to the Implementation of local (WCMDM) projects that will directly
impact on bulk Infrastructure raquirements,

Energy Efficiency and Demand Management

Gurrent-yaar receipts 2 420 000 4 000 000
Conditions met - transfarred to revenue (2420 000} (4 00D O00)
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28. Government grants & subsldles {Continued)

The grant |s used to subsidise to municipallties to Implement energy sfficiency and demand side managemaent inltiatives
within municipal Infrastructure i order te reduce alectriclty consumption and Improve energy efficiency.

During the year the municipallty recelved ts 'draw downs-as per Natlonal Treasury Indicatives.

Watar Services Infrastructure Grant

Balanse unspent at beginning of year ' 1 - 1

Current-year recelpis 100 000 GO0 145 000 000

Cendifions met - transferred to revenua (85 8083 358} (145 000 000)
14 106 642 1

The grant is used to fadilitate the planning and Implementation of varlous water and sanitation projecis to accelerate
backlog reduction and enhance the sustainability of services especlally In rural municlpalitios,

Purlng the year the munlcipallty recelved its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatlves. The municlpality could
hot spent all the funds received and a roll over application has been made to Natlonal Treasury for the balance of R 11
108 642, The priorties for the grant were changed and sewer projects had to be prioritised, this then resulted in
changes to business plans that were previously approved and subsequent delays in thelr approvat.

Municipal Emergency Houstng Grant

Current-year recelpts 16 625 778 -
Conditlons met - transferred to revenue (16 625 778) -

- -

The grant Is for the provision of temporary shelter assistance to households affected by disasters.

Durlng the year the mungipality received its draw downs as per Natichal Treasury indicatives.

AUDITOR GINERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

A7 DEC 2073
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29. Employee related costs
Baslc 181 523 816 184 600 002
Bonus 12744 643 11 808 929
Medical ald - company contributions 14811040 11768518
UIF and Group lifa 1620422 1 620403
8DL . 2 250 950 2118 663
Leave pay provislon charge 8047 617 1654 940
Qvertlme paymeants 6 935 877 4 918 605
Long-service awards 2 883 000 2 534 999
Car aliowance 20 087 290 17 666 623
Housing benefils and allowances 5 660 684 6 024-208
Bhiit allowance 2879 h49 3200407
Bargalning councl 70 421 67 157
Defined cantiibutlons plans 26120820 20985634
Standby allowance 2863610 2714 325
’ 239 287928 271593413
Remuneration of Municipal Manager
Annual Remuneration 680 406 1181 762
Car Allowanee 78 381 137 872
Annual Bonuses 63 988 98 480
Penslon, housing and medlcal allowances 317 522 551 480
UIF, SDL., Lavy 16 203 10442
Leave pay ‘ 363 614 -
1 520 204 1999 045
Remurneration of Chief Finangial Officer
Annual Remuneration 703 881 1067 7864
Car Allowance 247 828 274 668
Arnual Bonus 62 492 67 381
Penslon, housing and medical expenses 163 316 -
UIF, SDL, Levy 11 948 17772
Leave Pay - 209 126
Housing Allowance - 10 678
1 189 445 1737 388
Remuneration of Senlor Mangger - Corporate Sérvices
Annual Ramuneration S . 747 873 747 873
Car Allowance 249 291 249 291
Annual Bonus _ 62 323 10 387
Penstan, housing and medical expenses 186 968 186 068
UIF, SDL, Levy 14 261 13 669
1260 7186 1208 188
Remunaration of Senior Manager - Communlfy Services
Annual Remuneration 846 928 846 928
Car Allowance 141 165 141 155
Annual Bonus 70 577 70577
Pansion, housing and medical expensas 352 886 3IhZ 887
UIF, SDL, Levy 16 188 16 143
1427 734 1 427 690
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AUDITOR GENERAL
29, Employee related costs (contlnued) SOUTH AERI A
Ramuneration of Senlor Manager « IDMS -
07 DEC 2023
Annual Remuneration 786 805 796 194
Car Allowance 191 356 191 356
Annual Bonus 64 263 63 277
Panslon, Housing and Medical Expenses 242 301 242 501
UIF, 8DL, Levy 14 682 14 821
1 298 687 1308 149
Remuneration of Senlor Manager - Planhing and Economic Development
Annual Remuneration o . 6466 877 727 503
Car Allowance ) ' 181 448 197 944
Annual Benus 85 886 60 625
Contributicns to Madical and Pension Funds . 207 564 226 433
UIF, 8DL, Levy 13 355 12 318
Leave pay 172 548 -
1827 76 1224 823
30. Remuneration of counclilors
Councillors 11 306 563 10499131
Remuneration of councillors
Executive Mayor : D26 106 875 434
Deputy Executive Mayor 4G9 527 478 395
Speaker ! 752 508 338 969
Chlsf Whip 599 662 G6T 724
Mayoral Commiltes b 602 264 4 516794
Counclllors 2 B5G 407 3 822 8158
11306 563 10 499131

The salaries, allowances and beneflts of coundillors are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section

219 of the constlfution of South Afrlca.

The amount reflected on the face of the statement of financial parfermance is less compared to the disclosure
to debtors raised for councillors.

3. Litlgation expenditure

note due

Legel faas 7271078 T 268 253

32. Depreciation and amortisation

Proparty, plant and equipment 08 704 327 102 910 037

Intangible assets 288 214 492017
98 992 541 103 402 054

33. Finance costs

Trade and othar payablas - 408 04D
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4. Debt Impairment
Debt impalrment 13 404 022 6 4389 668
35. General expanses
Audit Committes 814 800 770 950
Publicly and Marketing Costs 4 008 083 2 b8g eay
-Audlt Feas 8 064 490 4 247 516
Bank charges 788 491 754 656
Cleanring 464 919 142 980
IT expenses 2 206 000 2 730000
Consumakles 50 798 505 7 824 536
Discount allowsd 533 484 961 066
Insurance 3161 138 4 421 202
Licence fees 16 843120 11 466 876
Fuel and Oll 16 522 610 8 239 400
Piinilng and Steflonery 1985 186 326 414
Protactive clothing 2 823 054 109 810
Subsatiptions and Membershlp fees 3 683 048 3 431 467
Postage and Telecommunication costs 9 409420 8 583 661
Travel - local 20 075 497 15 733 827
Travel - overseas 187 822 -
Electricity 23506876 20188044
Catating 4 388 766 1899 817
Conferenves and Seminars 2750746 1408818
Indigent Support 1492 860 b 495 636
Accommedation . 5393 159 4 238 014
Other expenseas 11 410 802 9410 0897
151 310 956 123 976 272
36. Bulk purchases
Water 13312408 10300 279
37. Contracted services
Consultants and Professional Services
Business and Advisary 5043 632 6913 236
Infrastructure and Planning 5272732 422 808
Gontractors
Repairs and Malntanance 00 865614 58320 104
Security services 30444898 30478774
Agric Park, EPWP, Pit-toilets and other contractors 48 960 258 54 031 384
Total Cansullants and Professional Setvices 10 316 364 7336134
Total Contractors 179279471 142 839 762
189 595 8356 150 175 896
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38. Cash generated from opearations

Surplus 579 352 340 724 460 068

Adjustments for:

Depraclation and amortlsation 93992 541 103 402 D54

Loss on sale of assels and llabilltles 1102 887 641 047

Actuarlal gains {1373 754) (1657 983)
Less on sale of Intangiblos 7 266 -

Interast on long tarm investment (703 500) (703 B0O)
Dabt impairment 13404 022 6 489 868

Movements In eperating isase assets and acoruals 24956 18 483

Employee benefits chligailons 1726 754 1 537 993

Movement In leave provislon 6446 704 175 816
Other non-gash ems - -
Changes In working capltal:

Inventories 4 837 591 (2713 343)
Recelvables from exchange transactions {24 970 654) (B141772)
Other recelvables from non-sxchange- nransactlons 9090348 15383 824
Payables from exchenge transactions- * =+ . (B4 837 783) 66202 654
VAT 9 284 193 1334 493
Unspent conditionat grants and reoeipts : 14106 642 (88732 914)
Changes in payables from non exchange transactions (911 367} 1334 609
; 625 436 705 820 031 887
AUDIT
39. Flnanclal instrurents disclosure S OR . NERAL
OUTH arRicA

Categories of financlal Instruments

2023 A7 DEC 2023 | |

Financial assets

At amortisad At cost Total
- cost
Long Tertn Investments 10 838 087 - 10838087
Unlisted Investments - 100 100
Trade and Receivables from exchange transactions 62 310 797 - 62310797
Receivables from nan-exchange transactionhs 532702 - 532702
Cash and cash equivalents 1410228 379 - 1110225 379
1183 906 9656 - 100 1 183 907 065
Financlal llabilities
At amorlised Total
. cost

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 154 732 5490 154 732 549
Payables from non-exchange transactions 2094 850 2 094 850
Operating leass llabllity 276 024 226 024

157 053 423 157 053 423

2022

Financial assets

At amortised At cost Total
cost
Other financial assets 10 134 B87 - 10 134 687
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3%. Flnanclal Instruments disclosure (continued)

Trade and other raceivables from exchange transactions 50 755 164 - 50755164
Other racelvables from non-exchange transactions 1352 526 - 1352 526
Other raceivables - Deposits {Non-current) ‘ 7704 963 - 7704 963
Cash and cash eguivalents 966 972 216 - 966972 216
Unlisted Invesiment - 100 100

1036 910 456 100 1036 919 556
Flnaneial liabilities

At amortlsed Total
cost

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 239383 274 239353 274
Othar payable from non-oxchanga transactions 3006 207 3 006 207
Operating lease llabllity 223 520 223 529

242 583 010 242 583 010

40, Commitments
Authorised capltal expenditure

Already cantracted for but not provided for

¢«  Properly, plant and equipment 674190576 516 982 408

Tofal capital commitments

Already confracted for but not provided for 674 180 576 516 B2 400

Total commitments

Total commlitments
Authorlsed capltal expenditure 674 190576 516 982 408

This committed expenditure relates to plant and equipment and will be financed by avallable bank facllitles and
government grants, and funds internally generatecl.

Operating leases - as lessee {Bulldings)
Minimaum lease payments dus

- within one year 548 777 503 468
- in second to fifth year incluslve 1119 746 1668 523

1 668 523 2 171 992

Operating lease payments raprasent rentals payable by the municipality for office properlies in Matatisl and Cedervilla.

Rental expenses rolating to operating leases

Minimum |ease payments - -
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41. Contlngencles

Contingent Liabllifies 2023 2022

1) Sinezipho Urban and Rural Development va ANDM. Clalm against the 1544713 1544 713
Municipality for alleged tarmination of confract. The Munlcipallty Is defending the

matter.

2) Moke va ANDIM. Letter of demand received in lleu of speclalist consultancy 376 927 37H 927
setvices renderad. The Munldipality Is defending the mattar.

3) Supa Brick Tlle ve ANDM: Claim for payment of eutstandlng halance for bullding 127 782 127 782
material suppllad as par cesslon agreament,

4) Natal Jolnt Municipal Pension Fund vs ANDM: Clalm for payment of outstanding 147 937 147 937
fund contribution

5) Slkhokels Maphukatha vs ANDM: Claim for repudiation of employment contract 8 600 000 6 800 000
6) Arule Securlty va ANDM :Claim for payment outstanding for services rendered. 1392 678 1392 679
7) Umeo Construction vs ANDM- Glalm for services rendered. - 5300 148
8) Yongama Gxumlsa vs ANDM-Claim for repudiation of employment agreement, 5 000 000 5 000 000
9) Niabankulu Reglonal Bulk Consultants vs ANDM- Allaged breach of contract 1281 470 1281470
10) Sokhani Devafopment vs ANDM- Claim for services rendered (Settled) 19 605 211 19 505 211
11) Niabankulu Regional Bullc Consultants vs ANDM- Alleged breach of contract 2215548 -

38191268 41365 867

The municipalify has been cited as a third respondent In case Irvelving ANDA and FBBI Soluilons where the
complainant s suing ANDA for tertnination of contract.

The munlcipality has also been cited in a case Involving ANDA and Madikizela where the complalnant |s suing ANDA for
termination of employment. .

Contingent assets

' 2023 2022
1. ANDM vs MP Civils: Failure to deliver a crawlar sprinkier, . 30 700 30 700
2. Lwanik Group - breach of contract 236 280 -
266 980 30 700

42, Prlor-year etvors

Prasanted below are those Items contalned in the statement of ﬁnam;ial posltiah, statement of financlal performances
and cash flow statemont that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:

Statement of financlal position as at 30 June 2022

AUDITOR C. NERAL |
SOUTH AFP'GA |

07 DEC 2023
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42, Prioryear errors {continued)
2022
Note As proviously Correction of Re- Restated
raparted eiror classificatlon balance
Inventorles 19 665 367 - - 19 665 367
Rasceivables from non-exchangs transactions 18 989 338 {1661 327} (7704 ¢63) 9623 048
Receivahles from exchange transactions &0 766 164 “ - BO75H 164
VAT receivable 421451668 {11 138 809} - 31006 356
Gash and cash eguivalents 966 839 445 132 771 - 088972216
Property Plant and Equipment 5 080 845 811 {4 671 136) - BO5G 174775
Intangltls agsets 762 812 - - 762912
Heritage assets 131100 - - 131100
[nvestment in controlled eniltles 100 " " 100
Investments 10 134 587 - - 10134 B8y
Other Raceivables (Deposlts) - - T 704863 7 704 963
Operating Lease Liablity {223 529 - S {223 529)
Provislons {26 513 487) - - {26 513 487)
Employes banefit obllgations- current {2 002 000) - - (2 002 000)
Payables from exchange transactlons (245 796 164) 6 442 BG0 « (239 353 274)
Payables from neh-exchange transactions {3 006 207) - - (3 006 207)
Employse beneflis obligation- non current {10 080 C00) - - (10050 000)
Accumulated strplus (5 882 647 702) 9 747 862 - {5 672 890 840)
= {1147 749) - (1147 749)
Statemant of financial performance for the perlod ended 30 June 2022
2022
Nota  As previously Correction of Re- Restated
reportad error classlfication balance
Service charges (26 422 862) - - (2B 422 862)
Rental of facillties {1781) - - (1 761}
Agency services (263 388) - - (263 388}
Other income (4 274 783) - - {4 274 783}
Interest recelvad (43 411 288) - - {43411 288)
Actuarial gains (1 657 983) - - {1 857 293)
Government grants (1 354 327 106) 1833 294 - {1352 693 812)
Employee related costs 271618377 (24 964) - 2715603413
Remuneration of counclilogs 10499 130 - - 10499 130
Litigetlon expenditure 7 268 253 - - 7 268 253
Dapraciation 102 768 522 141 515 492017 103 402 054
Amorijsation 492 017 - {482 017) -
Finance costs 406 049 - - 406 049
lease rentals 1802 041 - - 1502 041
Dabt Impaltment 6 489 668 - - G 489 668
Bulk purchases 10 265 495 34 784 - 10300279
Contracted services 180 960 974 (873 625) 83545 150 175 895
Transfers and subsidies 18 010 818 - - 18010818
Loss on dispossl 641 947 - - 641 947
General expensas 123 828 077 236 740 {88 545) 123976 272
Surplus for the year {728 607 812) 1147 744 - (724 460 068)

Errors

Additional text
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Figures h Rand . 2023 2022

42. Priorwyear errors (continued)

The municipallty conducted a search for unrecorded liabilities relating o 2021/2022 financlal year, The chjsctive was to
ensurs that all the expenditure was reported correcily In the relevant accounting petlod. The asarch revealed that our
general expendilure, bulk purchases were understated by R236 740 and R34 784, respectively, The conlracted services
were also understated by R873 625, The total adjuatment on payebles from exchange transactions were adjusted by R3
207 930 and Vat adjusted by R429 520 as a result of the above, There was an adlustment of R511 823 due to forfelted
retentions, '

Property plant and equipment, was revised as a result of 2 project that was reclassified from assets undsr construction
to completed Infrastructure, This also affected depraclation for the year. Further some of the retentions were Incorrectly
ralsed and had to be reversed and this also affected infrastructure assets,

Bome of the legal costs and general expenses at R30 000 and R58 545 respectivaly, were iheorecily classified and had
to be reclassifled Into sontracted services at R 88 545. Contracted Service were reclassified within the same somponent
to achieve fair presentation. There was also a raclassification of an amount of R57 800 from general expendlture to
coniracted expendiiure,

Committments were adjusted as a result of duplicated expendliure and adiustments of unrecorded liablitias. The total
adjusted flgure is R21 906 348

Statutory recslvables were not properly disclosed in the prior financial year and In this year a disclosure to the effect has
been made. The prlor year correction on this lfem amounted to R 39 852 256 , for VAT ahd RBIG grant. Furthet more on
VAT an ajustment of R10 350 513 as a result of a dispute by SARS.

Receivables from non exchange were reduced by an amount R 1 633 291 that was not going to be refunded by DWS,
this also affested grant revenue. An amount of R7. 704 963 for Eskom Deposits was reclassifled from current assets to
non-current assais as it Is not receivable within a year after end of the financial year.

A correctlon of the opening balance on Irregular expendiiure, as a result of an Incorrect Incluslon of an Item that did not
quallfy as irregular expenditure. Please refer io note 48 for further detalls.

A Gontigent liabllity, case of Madikizela vs ANDA amounting to R 3 000 000, was previeusly disclosed by the
Municipality and also by. Alfred Nzd' Developmeni Agency {ANDA). This was corrected and the case Is now only
disclosed by ANDA in thelr AFS and ohly disclosed on consolldation by the Municipality.

43, Risk management

Financlal risk management

The municipality's actlvities exposs it to a varlety of financial risks: market risk (Inciuding currency risk, falr value interest
rate risk, cash fiow interest rate tisk and price risk), eradit risk and liquidity risk.

The municlpality's overall sk management program focuses on the unpredictabliify of financlal marksts and seeks to
minindse potential adverse effects on the municipality’s financlal performance.

B0




ALFRED'NZO DISTRIICT MUNICIPALITY
(Repistratlon number DC44)
Annual Financlal Statements fo_r the vear endad 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand . ) 2023 2022

43. Risk management {continued)
Liguldity risk

Liquidity risks is the risk encountered by ‘an entity In the event of difflctlty in meeting obligations assoclated with
financtal liabilitles that are settlad by delivering cash or ancther financlal asset.

Liquldity risk Is mitigated by approving cash funded budgets at all imes to ensure commitments can be seitled once due
over the long term. The Municipalily alsc monltors Its cash balances an a daily basls to ensure cash resources are
avallable to seitte short term obligations.

30 June 2023 Payahles Payables after Payablos after Total
within 1 ysar 9 years 5 years

Payables from exchange transactions - 159 6531 913 10 955 000 - 170486 913

30 June 2022 Payables  Payable In 2 Payables after Total
withln 1 year fo 5 years 5 years

Payables from exchange transacilons 241355274 10080 000 - 251435274
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43. Risk management {continued)
Cradit risk

Credit risk conslsts malnly of cash deposiis, cash equivalents, derlvative financial Instruments and trads dsbtors, The
muriclpality only deposits cash with mafor banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one
counter-party.

Trade recelvables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customars on
an sngolng basls. If customers are independently rated, these raiings are used. Otherwise, If thars is no Independent
rating, risk control assesses the credlt quallty of the customer, taking Into account lis financial position, past exparience
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemnal or extemal ratings In accardance with limlts set by the
board. The ufllisatlon of credlt llmlis ls regularly monitored, Sales to retail customars are settled ih cash or usihg major
credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance Is purchased when deemad appropriate.

Financlal assats axposed tc credit risk at year end were as follows:

Flnancial instrument ) 2023 2022

Long term invesiment 10838087 10134568
Receivables from exchange Transactions 62310732 B0 755164
Recelvables from Non exchange Transactions 532 702 0 623 060
Cash and cash aqulvalents 1110225 378 966 972 216

The municlpallty holds nvestments at reputable banks that are listed on the JSE. The credlt quallty 1s regularly
monitored through requlred SENS releases by varlous banks. The exposure tisk on these depostis is considered to be
low.

There are no resirictions on the cash deposits held and no cash were pledged as security. No collateral is held for any
cash and cash squivalents.

Recaivables

Receivables comprise of a large number of users, dispersed accross different sectors and geographical areas. On-
going cradlt evaluatios are performed on the financial condition of these receivables. Credil risk pertaining fo
receivables are considered to be moderate due fo the diverslfied nature of receivables and immaterlal nature of
individual balances. In the case of consumer debtors, the municlpality effeclvely has the right to terminate services fo
cuzfomers, but in practice this Is difficult to apply. In the case of debiors whose accounts become in arrears, counclt
endeavours to cellect such accounts by "levying of penalty charge”, applicable In terms of Councl's Credit Control and
Debt Collection Palicy.

Racelvables disclosed after taking info account the provision for impairment raised against each class of recelvable.
Recelvables are payable within 30 days. All receivables outstanding for more than 30 days are consldered to be past
due. Refer to hote B for more Information regarding the provision for Impairment raised agalnst each service type as well
as recsivables considered 1o be past due,

No recelvables were pledged as security for liabilities and no coliateral Is held from any consumers (other than
consumer dapoeits). '

The following service raceivables are considared past dua (more than 30 days outstanding

Watar ' 148 477 787 125 932 468
Sewerage 24826 331 21090800
Ciher 1334 107 1302 297

174 438 225 148 415 555

Long Term Recelvebles are disclosed after teking into account any provision for impairment raised against the
outstanding balance. Each oulstanding balance is individually assesed for Impairment.

No recelvables were pledgad as sacurity for liabllities and no collateral held from any of the counterpartias,

a2




ALFﬁEb Ni(’) DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

{Reglstration number DC44y —
Annual Finandlal Sfatsments for the year ended 30 June 2023 AUDlTUR C.aNER Al \

cUTH AFRICA

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand L s 2023 2022
TTOEC R |
43. Rlsk management (continued) \
Market risk ' |
[ PR

Interest rate risk

Inferest Rata Risk Is the risk that the falr value of future cashflows assoclated with & financial instrument will fluctuate in
amount as a result of market interest changes,

Finanelal assets and liabilities that are sensitive to Interest Rafe Risk are cash equlvalents, Investments, and loan
payables, The muntclpality Is not exposed to interest rate sk on these financlal instruments as the rates applicable are
fixed Interost rates.

Potentlal concentrations of interast rate risk oonslsts malnly of fixed deposits investments, long term debtors, other
debtors, short term Investments deposits and bank and cash balances.

The munlcipality limiis it counterpart exposures from ifs money market invesiments operations by enly dealing with well
established financlal Institutlons of high credit standing. The credit exposures to any single counterpart Is managed by
satting percentage exposure limits, which are inciuded In the municlpallty's investinent polloy. These limits are reviewed
periodically by the Chief Financial Officer and authorised by the Council,

The followlng balances are exposed to Interest rate fluctuations:

Cash and Cash Equivaiants 1110225 370 066 8972 216
Non Current investments 10838087 10134 587
Net Balance Exposed 1121 063 468 977 106 803

Fotentlal effect of changes in Interest rates on surplus and deflcit to the
year/perlol
11210 635 9771068
(11210635) (2 771 068)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS:

Finangial Asseifs

Al 30 June 2023, if the weighted average interest rate had been 100 peints basls higher, with all other variables held
constant, the falr valuie impact on the financlal performance would have been R 11,2 million with the opposite effect if
the Interest rate had been 100 points basls lowet. The sensitivity analysis would ba performed by dividing the total

Investment Interest eathed fot the year by the average Interest rate earned to glve the effect of a one percent movemant
in Interest rates.

Financlal Liabillfics

Changes In the interost rates as at 3¢ June 2023 would have had no impact en the statement of financial performance,
as the munigipality has ne borrowings.

Price risk

Price Risk (Market Risk)

Other price risk is the rsk that the {alr value or future cashflows of a finenclal Instrument will Auctuate because of
changes in market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whelher those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded In the market

The municipality Is not exposed to any other price Hek.
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44. Unauthorised, Irregular and Frultless and Wastefu! Expendlture

Irregular expenditure 214 275 836 318 363 161
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure : 18 260 096 18 250 098
CGlosing balance 232525932 336 613 257
45. Frultless and wasteful expendifure

Opening balance as previously raported 182350088 17 844 047
Add: Fruliless and wasteful expenditure identified - current - 406 D40
Closing balance 18250096 18 250 096

Frultless and westeful expenditure presentad |s inclusive of VAT. There has not been any new frultless expenditure In
tha current financlal ysar. The balance ls stil! under investigation by MPAC.

46. Irregular expenditure

Openlng balance as praviously reported 318 363 161 432 733 293
Add: Irregular expendlture - current 852 (094 18 6248 330
Add: Irregular expenditure - prior petlod : 32473669 83936186
Less: Amount wiltten off - current - (196 635)
Less: Amount witten off - prior period (137 512 888) (217 736 1 3)
Closing balance 214275836 318 363 161

Cases under investigation

Expenditure on cases related to non-compllance with procurement process requirements amounted te R 214 275 836,
The expenditure of R 32 473 569 incurred In the current year Is for contracts that are continuing from the previous years.
There has been additlons to frregular expanditure in the current financlal year that amounted to RO52 094, Thess ware
also as a result of non compllance with supply chain policies.

Munlsipal Supply Chain Management Policles or By-laws 214275 836 318 363 161

Amount written-off

After the coundll committee investlgations, councll adopted the council committes recommendation to write-off an
amaunt of R24 770 102 which came from contracts that are still on going but were investigated and approved for the
write off In the previous financial year. An amount of R 112 742 886 refates to the contracts that wera declared irregular
In the prior yaars, Investigated by MPAC and recommended for write off In the 2023 financial year. The balance on
iregular expenditure Is sfill under Investigation. = . -

Restatement of prior year balance

A prior year adjustment was made to the irregular expenditure, a contract between the Municipality and ECSECC was
entered into in 2014, The contract was procured through section 110(2) of the MFMA which allows the Municipality to
enter into a contract with other crgan of state whitout followlngv SCM procurement processes. The total expenditure on
the contract was R 2 450 000 which was erronecusly included in irregular expenditure, had to be removed. The total
adjustad opening balance s R 318 363 162, :

Recoverability steps taken/eriminal proceadings

Steps in the form of Criminal proceedings were levelled agalnst some of the former municipal officials and service
provider, for not following scm procedures in procurring trucks.
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47. Daeviatlon from supply chaiit managemant regulations

Paragraph 12(1){d){) of Government gezetie No, 27636 |ssued on 30 May 2005 states that & supply chain management
policy must provide for the proourement of goods and services by way of a compeiitive bidding process,

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the acoounting officer may dispense with the offictal procurement process
In certain ciroumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them io the next meeting
of the Gouncll and includes a note to the annual financlal statements.

Incidents .
Imprastical to follow SCM procedures 4762 081 1139 229

48. Awards fo close family members of persons in the service of the state
1. The direstor frem MUNSQOFT, Ndiafhl Reran| Is the spouss of Mary Reranl who |s working for the Department of Justic

2. The Mayor of Bojanala Distriot Municipality, Magdalane Nondzaba, is the mother to the Senlor Business Development
Managar from Munsoft, Nkululeke Nendzaba,

3. The Director of IPM, Zana Madlklzela, Is the spouse of Babalo Madikizels the MEC of Public works.

4. Bonganl Xolo Is the brother of NR Xolo who Is worklng at Alired Nzo District Municlipality as a Senlor Manager:
Corporate Services,

Suppliers paid after 30 days

Puring the year, the municipallty did not always comply with the provisions of sectlon 68(2){e} of the MFMA which
requlres that all payments be reascnably made within 30 days. This is due fo inappropriate documentation, invalld
banking details and delays in processing of DWS claims. The total amount of such invoices not pald wiihin 30 days s
R& 010 507.

Expenditure for accommodation pald In advance
The municipality infroduced cost sontainment measures and has not been using the services of a travel agency for

accomrmodation, this led to gome of the accommodation costs Included In the reported total amount of RS 393 159
belhg paid before councillors or employees check in for accommodation, using guotations as opposed to invoices.
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49. Additional dlsclosures in terms of Munleipal Finance Management Act

Contributlons o organised local government

Current year subscription 3494 534 3 297 684
Arount pald - current year (3494 534) {3287 684)
Audit foes

Currant year subseription / fees ' 8064 490 4247 516
Amaount paid - current year (6084 490) {4 247 518)
PAYE, UIF and SDL.

Current ysar subscription / fees 46 365 374 44 954 258
Amount paid - currant year {46 365 374) (44 954 258)
Penslon and Medlcal Aid deductlons

Current year subscripticn / foes b6 063 2158 B4 547 394

Amount paid - current year (56 053 216) (54 547 394)

50. Statutory receivables

The murnicipallty had the following statutory receivables where the Framework for the Preparation and Presantation of Financial

Staternents have been applled, for the initlal recognltion:

Qther statutory receivable - VAT Receivable 25061 627 31364730
Value Tax Act 89 of 1991
Other statutory receivable - DWS - 8 270 526
Department of water and sanitation - RBIG grant due to the Municipality

25081 627 39 635 256
51. Related pariles
Related party balances
Transfers to ANDA (Excluding VAT) 26086956 17 391 304

The remuneration of Counclllors, Directors and the Municlpal Manager is diclosed in note 29.
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